
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
Disabled persons needing reasonable accommodations should call Central Arizona Fire and Medical 
Authority at (928) 772-7711 prior to the scheduled meeting. 

Page 1 of 2 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38­431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Central Arizona Fire and 
Medical Authority Board of Directors and the general public that the Central Arizona Fire and Medical 
Authority will hold a meeting open to the public on Tuesday, December 20, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. The meeting 
will be held at Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority, Station 61, 1133 W. Road 3 North, Chino Valley, 
Arizona. The Board may vote to go into Executive Session on any agenda item, pursuant to A.R.S. §  
38­431.03(A)(3) for discussion and consultation for legal advice with Authority's Attorney on matters as set 
forth in the agenda item. The following topics and any variables thereto, will be subject to Board 
consideration, discussion, approval, or other action. All items are set for possible action. 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Prescott Valley Town Council Report 
B. Exiting Board Member Appreciation - Steve Rutherford, Bob Page 

 
4. SWEAR IN AND SEAT BOARD MEMBERS 
 
5. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Discuss Appointment and Approve Fifth Board Member 
B. Swear In and Seat Fifth Board Member 
C. Appoint Fire Board Chairperson and Clerk 
 

6. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
Those wishing to address the Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority Board need not request permission 
in advance. However, we ask that you complete a Call To Public Form for the record. The Board is not 
permitted to discuss or take action on any item raised in the Call to the Public due to restrictions of the Open 
Meeting Law; however, individual Board members may be permitted to respond to criticism directed to them. 
Otherwise, the Board may direct the staff to review the matter or the matter may be placed on a future 
agenda. Individuals may be limited to speak for three (3) minutes with a total of 30 minutes allotted for Call to 
the Public per meeting. 

 
7. CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters listed under consent agenda are considered to be routine by the Central Arizona Fire and Medical 
Authority Board and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items. If 
discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the consent agenda and will be considered separately 
for discussion and possible action. 

 
A. Approve Regular Session Minutes - November 15, 2016 
B. Approve Executive Session Minutes - November 15, 2016 
C. Approve General Fund Financial Statements 
D. Approve Fire Protection Agreement - Hanby 
E. Approve Amendment to Fire Board Policy 3.5 Board Officer Duties 

 
8. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

A. Letters from the Public 
B. Monthly Division Reports from the Fire Chief and staff in regard to current activities of the Fire Authority 

and the status and progress relating thereto 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED 
 



A. Discussion and Approval of YRMC Client Services Agreement with Associated Fee Schedule 
B. Discus and Approve Purchase of Turn Outs 
C. Approve Policy Amendments 203 Drug Policy, 401 Work Schedule, 402 Compensation, 403 Leave 

Benefits 
D. Update and Discussion Regarding Interior Design of New Administration Building 
E. Discussion Regarding Public Records Requests 

 
10. VOTE TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

A. Legal Advice Pursuant to A.RS. §38-431.03(A)(3) and Discussion and Instruction to Representatives 
Regarding Negotiations for the Sale of Real Property Pursuant to A.RS. §38-431.03(A)(7) Re: Real 
Property Located at 238 N. Highway 89, Chino Valley, Arizona (Parcel 306-23-058) 

 
11. NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED 
 

A. Discussion and Possible Acceptance of a Sales Contract for Station 64 Located at 238 N. Highway 89, 
Chino Valley, Arizona (Parcel 306-23-058) 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
Disabled persons needing reasonable accommodations should call Central Arizona Fire and Medical 
Authority at (928) 772-7711 prior to the scheduled meeting. 

Page 2 of 2 

 



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  December 12, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPOINT FIRE BOARD CHAIRPERSON AND CLERK 

 
The Fire Board needs to appoint a Chairperson and Clerk for a one-year term. The 
updated Fire Board Policy 3.5 Board Officer Duties is included under the consent 
agenda. 
 
Suggested Motions: 
 

Appoint _______ as Chairperson of the Board 
 
Appoint _______ as Clerk of the Board 

 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 

Page 3 of 194



 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR SESSION 
 

November 15, 2016 
 

MINUTES 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS 

 
Chairman Rutherford called the Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority (CAFMA) 
Board of Directors' meeting to order on Tuesday, November 15, 2016, at 4:51 p.m. 
at the Town of Prescott Valley, Library Auditorium, 7401 E. Civic Circle, Prescott 
Valley, Arizona. 

 
Members Present: Board Chairman Steve Rutherford, Board Clerk Julie Pettit, 

Board Members Darlene Packard and Bob Page 
 

Members Absent: Board Member Dave Dobbs 
 

Staff: Fire Chief Scott Freitag, Assistant Chief of Administration 
Dave Tharp, Administrative Manager Susanne Dixson, 
Administrative Assistant III Laura Mowrer 

 
Others in Attendance: Attorney Nick Cornelius 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Chairman Rutherford led the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
3. PRESENTATIONS 

 
A. Prescott Valley Town Council Report 

 
No report was given. 
 

4. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 

Chairman Rutherford opened the meeting for public comments.  
 
There were no public comments. 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Central 
Arizona Fire and Medical Authority Board and will be enacted by one motion. There 

Page 4 of 194



Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
Regular Session – November 15, 2016 

Page 2 
 

will be no separate discussion on these items. If discussion is desired, that item will 
be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately for 
discussion and possible action. 
 
A. Approve Regular Session Minutes - October 18, 2016 
B. Approve Executive Session Minutes - October 18, 2016 
C. Approve General Fund Financial Statements 
D. Approve Fire Protection Agreements: Irwin, Gray Wolf Regional Facility Waste 

Management of N. AZ 
 

Board Clerk Pettit made a motion to accept the Consent Agenda items 5A 
through D. Board Member Page seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES:  Packard, Page, Pettit, Rutherford 
NAYS:  None 
 

6. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

A. Letters from the Public 
 
Chairman Rutherford mentioned the internal appreciation letter to the Fleet 
Maintenance members for getting their engine running again. Chief Freitag also 
explained that The Chino Valley Machine Shop came in on a Sunday to rebuild 
the driveshaft for the engine.  
 
Board Member Packard mentioned a letter from the school for the Training 
Division. Chief Freitag described how the Agency is working with local schools to 
encourage students in anatomy and physiology, chemistry, and vehicle 
maintenance.  
 

B. Monthly Division Reports from the Fire Chief and staff in regard to current 
activities of the Fire Authority and the status and progress relating thereto 
 
Chief Freitag mentioned that there was a meeting with the State Fire Marshal’s 
Office. Arizona does not report call statistics to the federal government; therefore, 
missing some opportunities for funding. The Federal Government flew a member 
to Arizona to discuss the process of implementing online reporting. He also 
mentioned that there are a number of small agencies that can report their data 
for free. 
 
Chief Freitag shared some financial challenges the Agency is facing due to on 
and off-duty personnel injuries. These injuries create issues with staffing and the 
overtime budget. Chairman Rutherford confirmed that we will probably max out 
the personnel budget line item. Chief Freitag stated that staff has already been 
reviewing the budget and making adjustments. He mentioned that due to the 

Page 5 of 194



Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
Regular Session – November 15, 2016 

Page 3 
 

costs associated with numerous personnel off, we will apply for the SAFER Grant 
next year. A member is going on active military duty for six months and we have 
a retirement in the near future. We will utilize funds from the active duty member 
and the upcoming retirement to hire a replacement. 
 
Chief Tharp explained that the Hall Case has been decided relative to elected 
officials, and this also affects PSPRS. There will be additional legal matters that 
need to be resolved prior to a proposal of how overpaid funds will be paid back to 
employees. There has not been a determination yet as to whether PSPRS 
refunds money to the employer or if the employer is responsible for the funds. 
Chief Tharp stated that he will keep the Board apprised of the status and share 
the complete documents if the Board would like. This will have a profound impact 
on organizations across the State. 
 
Chief Freitag stated that we do not know the long-term effect of this decision as 
we do not know all the implications of this decision. We are working on figuring 
what is due to employees; however, the long-term liabilities have not been 
determined yet.  
 
Chairman Rutherford mentioned that this was not unexpected; the lawsuit has 
been going on for several years. The implications of this decision are unknown; 
PSPRS has to decide how it is going to be handled. 
 
Board Clerk Pettit mentioned that the audit is complete, and she commended 
Chief Tharp and his staff for their hard work. Chief Tharp shared his appreciation 
of his staff for their compliance with standards, professionalism, and hard work.  
 
Fire Marshal Chase shared the upcoming community events: 
 

 The Flying High Turkey Drive (food drive) is Monday, November 21st from 
12:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. at the Prescott Valley Fry’s parking lot. 

 

 Prescott Valley Light Parade is December 2nd, and Board Members are 
welcome to participate. 

 

 Prescott Christmas Parade is December 3rd at 1:00 p.m. We will have two 
engines in the parade; one supporting the Prescott Wildland Urban Interface 
Commission and the other will be for the Firefighter Angel Program. 

 

 Early Bird Lions will start selling Christmas trees in the Prescott Valley Event 
Center parking lot soon. 

 
Board Clerk Pettit mentioned her appreciation of our community partnerships and 
mentioned the outreach event held at Mountain Valley Park in conjunction with 
Prescott Valley Police Department.  

Page 6 of 194



Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
Regular Session – November 15, 2016 

Page 4 
 

 
Board Member Packard shared that our partnerships have substantially 
increased over the past four years. 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Approve Resolution 2016-15 Accepting the Amendment to the 2012 International 
Fire Code as Adopted by the Central Yavapai Fire District and the Chino Valley 
Fire District 
 
Chief Freitag mentioned that CAFMA had adopted previous amendments, and 
this is presented for consistency. We will be presenting another resolution so that 
future amendments will be automatically adopted after the other Boards approve. 
 
Chairman Rutherford explained that this is changing the 96' diameter cul-de-sac 
requirement to 82' drivable diameter with No Parking signs posted. 
 
Board Member Page made a motion to accept 2012 International Fire Code 
amendment and Resolution 2016-15. Board Member Packard seconded the 
motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES:  Packard, Page, Pettit, Rutherford 
NAYS:  None 
 

B. Approve Amendments: Policy 800 Vehicle and Equipment Inspection, Policy for 
Public Records Request 
 
Chief Freitag mentioned that the Public Records Request Form was not 
presented to the Policy Committee; however, it will be. The form was amended to 
reflect State Statute.  
 
Attorney Cornelius mentioned that we have received numerous freedom of 
information requests and explained that we are only allowed to bill for time and 
materials for copying; no other fees are allowed for research time for non-
commercial requests. 
 
Chief Freitag explained that the most recent request may include 1,500 emails in 
addition to the time required to review and redact emails prior to release. This is 
a very expensive process, and we will only be able to recover the time spent at 
the copy machine and the cost of the copies. 
 
Board Clerk Pettit made a motion to approve Policy 800 Vehicle and Equipment 
Inspection and Policy for Public Records Request. Board member Packard 
seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 

Page 7 of 194



Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
Regular Session – November 15, 2016 

Page 5 
 

AYES:  Packard, Page, Pettit, Rutherford 
NAYS:  None 
 

C. Discussion and Approval to Purchase a Truck Company and an Engine 
 
Chief Bliss asked for the Board’s approval to purchase two apparatus to replace 
the 2000 Ladder Truck and a 1994 Engine. This is part of the regular capital 
replacement program that is reviewed annually. The 1994 Engine is currently 
assigned to training. We initially projected the Ladder Truck to have a ten-year 
life cycle prior to being placed into reserve status. However, with routine 
maintenance and use we have been able to keep it longer. Additionally, we 
determined that we only need one ladder truck; therefore, it is not required to be 
kept in reserve and will be sold as surplus. We have been reviewing this 
replacement annually. The cycle for a new engine is about 18 months for 
delivery; these apparatus are in this year’s budget. The bid for the ladder truck is 
$930,527.00.  
 
Chief Bliss explained that the Reserve Fund was eventually to be reduced to 
about $4.5 mil, and we are projecting an increase to $8 mil with revising the 
replacement schedule. The replacement schedule will be presented to the Board 
at a future meeting for approval. He explained that we have two water tenders 
that were purchased in 1980. He mentioned we have significantly decreased the 
purchases of Water Tenders and Type 6 Engines. We have been able to extend 
the life of the water tenders. 
 
We budgeted $562,247 for the engine and the bid is more than $100,000 less at 
about $447,915. There are other expenses for outfitting the engine, but we are 
still well under budget. 
 
Chief Bliss explained that we originally anticipated a replacement Ladder Truck 
at $1.5 mil. We have $1.25 mil budgeted; the bid is under a million dollars at 
about $930,527. He mentioned these are very good prices and includes 
discounts of about $25,000 for a multi-unit purchase and prepaid chassis. 
 
Fleet Services Manager Scaife explained that the Ladder Truck is about 17 years 
old and is still in front-line service. He gave a detailed explanation of how 
Diversified Ladders performs annual Ladder Truck inspections and notifies him of 
items that need to be repaired. The repairs are made and Diversified Ladders 
then certifies the Ladder Truck. The needed repairs are increasing which 
increases safety concerns. This ladder truck would not go into reserve status, but 
could be sold to a company in Colorado. Current similar engines have a value of 
about $100,000 to $150,000. Sometimes the engines are refurbished and sold to 
a smaller agency.  
 

Page 8 of 194



Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
Regular Session – November 15, 2016 

Page 6 
 

Chairman Rutherford voiced concerns regarding issues outside the Agency's 
control such as the Hall Case. He mentioned that we have an apparatus that is 
wearing out, and we should not put people at risk. He is concerned about 
spending the money today with the uncertainty of PSPRS. He recommended 
waiting three or four months and stated that the purchases could be split; 
however, we would lose the multi-vehicle discount. 
 
Attorney Cornelius confirmed the initial price of the chassis and that the balance 
would be due in 18 months. 
 
Chief Bliss acknowledged that the Hall Case will have a significant impact on the 
budget. However, there are usually apparatus price increases in January and 
added that the capital expense items are purchased from the capital expense 
account, not the account that will be impacted by the Hall case. 
 
Chief Freitag explained that some of the cost variances with holding off on the 
purchase along with the plan for improving the Reserve Fund. He also mentioned 
that there is only one engine on the plan for next fiscal year. He believes it would 
be better to purchase the apparatus this year and delay next year’s single 
purchase.  
 
Board Clerk Pettit mentioned that there is a trend of needing more repairs, and 
the resolution of the Hall Case may take 18 months. Chief Bliss confirmed if the 
ladder is deemed unsafe, it will be pulled from service, and we will operate 
without a ladder company until it can be replaced rather than placing the 
employees or public in harm. 
 
Chairman Rutherford confirmed the bid of $447,915 for the engine and $947,517 
for the Ladder Truck; there are also options. 
 
Chief Bliss recommended that the Board approve the proposals “as submitted” 
rather than an exact dollar amount so that the options may be selected. 
 
Board Member Packard made a motion to approve the proposals as submitted. 
Board Member Page seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES:  Packard, Page, Pettit 
NAYS:  Rutherford  
 

D. Discussion and Possible Approval of Headwaters Architectural Contract for 8603 
E. Eastridge Building 
 
Chief Freitag stated the architectural contract has been reviewed by legal 
counsel and our addendum has been attached. 
 

Page 9 of 194



Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
Regular Session – November 15, 2016 

Page 7 
 

Board Member Page made a motion to approve Headwaters Architecture 
contract for 8603 E. Eastridge Drive building. Board Clerk Pettit seconded the 
motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES:  Packard, Page, Pettit, Rutherford 
NAYS:  None 
 

8. VOTE TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

A. Legal Advice Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) Regarding Serial Meeting 
Communications 
 

B. Legal Advice Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) and Personnel Issues 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1) Regarding Chief Freitag Personnel Issues 
 
Board Member Packard made a motion to go into Executive Session. Board 
Clerk Pettit seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES:  Packard, Page, Pettit, Rutherford 
NAYS:  None 
 

Chairman Rutherford recessed to go into Executive Session at 5:59 p.m. 
 

Board Member Packard made a motion to reconvene into Open Session. Board 
Clerk Pettit seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED  
 
AYES:  Packard, Page, Pettit, Rutherford 
NAYS:  None 
 

Chairman Rutherford reconvened into Public Session at 6:20 p.m. 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED 
 

A. Discussion and Any Necessary Action Regarding Serial Meeting 
Communications 
 
Attorney Cornelius admonished the Board and directed them to be aware of 
issues related to messages between Board Members. Members must be careful 
when communicating regarding Board matters with any other elected or 
appointed Board Member. He stated that if a Board Member has a question or 
concern regarding a matter related to the Agency, they should direct comment to 
senior staff or legal counsel rather than creating an inadvertent quorum by 
sending directly or by sending to one member and they forward to another 
member. Many times the messages are sent with blind copy and include a 
message that states “do not respond to all or forward to other Board members". 

Page 10 of 194



Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
Regular Session – November 15, 2016 

Page 8 
 

 
B. Discussion and Any Necessary Action Regarding Chief Freitag Personnel Issues 

 
Attorney Cornelius explained that Chief Freitag is this Board’s only employee. 
This issue arose due to comments he received from Central Yavapai Fire District 
Board Member Jacobs. Attorney Cornelius will provide correspondence that he 
received to this Board. 
 
Chair Rutherford provided positive comments regarding Chief Freitag's and his 
staff’s performance.  
 
Board Clerk Pettit asked that the freedom of information requests along with the 
cost estimates and the amount that the Agency can recoup be placed on future 
agendas. 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Board Member Packard made a motion to adjourn. Board Clerk Pettit seconded the 
motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES:  Packard, Page, Pettit, Rutherford 
NAYS:  None 

 
Chairman Rutherford adjourned the meeting at 6:23 p.m. 

 
 
   
 Clerk Date 
 

Page 11 of 194



Page 14 of 194



Page 15 of 194



Page 16 of 194



Page 17 of 194



Page 18 of 194



Page 19 of 194



Page 20 of 194



Page 21 of 194



Page 22 of 194



Page 23 of 194



Page 24 of 194



Page 25 of 194



Page 26 of 194



Page 27 of 194



P
a
g
e
 2

8
 o

f 
1
9
4



Z:\Administration\Finance\Financials\FYE 06-30-17\Rev Exp Graphs\Rev Exp Graphs 2016-11-30.xlsx\Rev Data

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
REVENUE

Current YTD
Month Revenue Budget

Funding Requirement 
CYFD 3,676,329$         14,449,633$      74.04
Funding
Requirement CVFD 921,034$            3,850,599$        18.55
Fire Protection
Contracts 4,307$                124,000$           0.09
Fleet Mtc 3,683$                24,750$             0.07
Training Center 1,420$                39,000$             0.03
Fire
Prevention 800$                   48,300$             0.02
Tech
Services 2,889$                135,000$           0.06
Interest Income 217$                   21,000$             0.00
Grants 5,039$                -$                  0.10
W/H
Purch Grp 44,491$              50,000$             0.90
Other Income 304,866$            92,600$             6.14

4,965,076$         18,834,882$      100.00   

Page 29 of 194



Funding Requirement CYFD 
74.04% 

Funding 
Requirement CVFD 

18.55% 

Fire Protection 
Contracts 

0.09% 

Fleet Mtc 
0.07% 

Training Center 
0.03% 

Fire 
Prevention 

0.02% Tech 
Services 
0.06% 

Interest Income 
0.00% 

Grants 
0.10% 

W/H 
Purch Grp 

0.90% 
Other Income 

6.14% 

Funding
Requirement CYFD
Funding
Requirement CVFD
Fire Protection
Contracts
Fleet Mtc

Training Center

Fire
Prevention
Tech
Services
Interest Income

Grants

W/H
Purch Grp
Other Income

            CAFMA   
FY 2016 - 2017 

General Fund Revenue 
For the Period Ending 11/30/16 

Page 30 of 194



Z:\Administration\Finance\Financials\FYE 06-30-17\Rev Exp Graphs\Rev Exp Graphs 2016-11-30.xlsx\Exp Data

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY
EXPENSES

Current Month  
Actual YTD Budget

Personnel 1,162,256$             15,738,508$           71.32       
Supplies 111,252$               1,604,610$             6.83         
Services 352,567$               1,537,573$             21.64       
Capital Outlay 3,479$                   4,155,027$             0.21         

1,629,554$             23,035,718$           100          

Page 31 of 194



Personnel  
71.32% 

Supplies 
6.83% 

Services 
21.64% 

Capital Outlay 
0.21% 

Personnel

Supplies

Services

Capital Outlay

            CAFMA  
FY 2016 - 2017 

General Fund Expenditures 
For the Period Ending 11/30/16 

Page 32 of 194



Page 33 of 194



z:\administration\office\fire board\miscellaneous\5a bank reconciliation board approval 
sheet.docx 

The Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority Board of Directors have reviewed and 
approved the following financial documents to include Income Statements, Balance 
Sheets, and Bank Reconciliations with supporting documents, Revenue and 
Expenditure Graphs, and Cash Flow Projections in compliance with A.R.S. § 48-805, 
807. 

CAFMA General Fund 

 

   
 Fire Board Chairperson Date 
 
 
 
   
 Fire Board Clerk Date 

Page 34 of 194



P
a
g
e
 3

5
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 7

4
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 7

5
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 7

6
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 7

7
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 7

8
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 7

9
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 8

0
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 8

1
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 8

2
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 8

3
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 8

4
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 1

0
3
 o

f 
1
9
4



Page 104 of 194



Page 105 of 194



Page 106 of 194



Page 107 of 194



Page 108 of 194



Page 109 of 194



Page 110 of 194



Page 111 of 194



Page 112 of 194



Page 113 of 194



Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
 

FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
 

 This Fire Protection Agreement is made effective November 15, 2016, between 
the Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority, a political subdivision of the State of 
Arizona, hereinafter referred to as “AGENCY” and Gary and Carol Hanby, hereinafter 
referred to as the “Applicant.”  The property under consideration is described as: 
 

Street Address:  66 E Alpine Dr 
Mailing Address:  PO Box 1438, Chino Valley AZ 86323 
Contact Phone Number:  928-853-6398 
Yavapai County Assessor’s Parcel Number:  305-03-281 
 
 IT IS THEREFORE MUTUALLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED AS 

FOLLOWS:  
 
 1) Purpose.  AGENCY shall provide fire protection and limited emergency 
medical services under the terms of this Agreement.  
 
 2) Duration and Renewal.  The effective term of this Agreement shall be from 
November 15, 2016 through June 30, 2017. The provisions of this Agreement shall 
renew automatically on July 1 of each year for consecutive one-year terms, unless 
either party pursues termination of the Agreement pursuant to Paragraph 11.  
 

3) Services Provided.  Fire Suppression, Emergency Rescue, and limited 
Emergency Medical Services (collectively “Emergency Services”) will be provided under 
this Agreement. Unless the Incident Commander (senior AGENCY Officer present) 
requests additional help, AGENCY shall provide a standard response as determined by 
AGENCY dispatch protocols on each emergency call from the Applicant, subject to 
conditions below.  
 
 It is intended that the Emergency Services provided under this Agreement shall 
be made available to the individuals residing at the property described in the Preamble 
above (the “Property”) or invitees of said residents (collectively, “Service Recipients”) in 
conjunction with the above-referenced Property irrespective of whether the Property is 
owner-occupied or leased. While the Applicant shall be responsible for all fees 
assessed under this Agreement, AGENCY also reserves the right to invoice any actual 
Service Recipient for the services provided under this Agreement, according to the fee 
schedule adopted by AGENCY, as amended from time to time. Said billing shall be in 
addition to the service fee charged under this Agreement. 
  
 In providing services under this Agreement, AGENCY reserves the right to 
involve such other jurisdictions and EMS or suppression service providers as it deems 
necessary, consistent with its then current protocol. No assurances are made as to 
whether, or to what extent, any such third party providers will respond. Applicant and 

Page 114 of 194



 

 2 

Service Recipients may be responsible for any additional charges assessed by such 
other service providers. 
 
 Applicant herein acknowledges that AGENCY alone will determine its response 
to any given incident and that AGENCY alone will determine the number of units and 
personnel responding to such incident. Applicant further acknowledges that such 
response is subject to, among others and without limitation, any unforeseen 
circumstance, a major fire, other accidents, conflicting concurrent calls, reduction in 
force, road closure, poor road conditions, acts of God, or other situations in which there 
is a shortage of manpower or equipment. Applicant understands that the response time 
will likely be extended beyond that which might be regularly expected elsewhere within 
the jurisdictional boundaries of AGENCY by reason of the distance to and isolation of 
the Applicant’s Property, the limited manpower available, access limitations, road 
conditions, and the other calls within AGENCY that may take priority, and Applicant 
hereby consents to the same. In addition, Applicant acknowledges and agrees that 
AGENCY’s response and effectiveness may be limited by a lack of adequate water 
supply.  
 
 Applicant acknowledges and agrees that AGENCY may, in its sole discretion, 
give priority to other emergency calls either within AGENCY’s jurisdictional boundaries 
or outside AGENCY boundaries, potentially causing a delay in response time. Further, 
Applicant acknowledges and agrees that AGENCY may, in conjunction with any call to 
the Property, respond with insufficient equipment or manpower on occasion, either by 
reason of limited manpower, equipment availability, resource allocation, or by reason of 
the limited information having been made available to AGENCY in conjunction with the 
determination of the appropriate response.  
 

Applicant hereby acknowledges that no assurances are given or warranties 
made as to the response time or service level that will be offered, and agrees to hold 
the AGENCY harmless from and indemnify AGENCY for any and all damages which 
might be incurred by Applicant, Service Recipient, to Applicant’s Property or to any third 
party’s property or person, including that of any Service Recipient, by reason of 
extended response times, reduced equipment or manpower response, the decision to 
involve other service providers, failure to involve other jurisdictions or service providers, 
AGENCY’s decision to allocate resources elsewhere either inside or outside of 
AGENCY’s jurisdictional boundaries, the allocation of manpower or equipment, or other 
operational decisions which might result in delay or additional loss of life or property.  

 
Further, Applicant acknowledges and agrees that AGENCY shall not be liable for 

the negligent act or omission of any third party service provider. Applicant also agrees 
that AGENCY is under no obligation to transport any Service Recipient. Applicant 
acknowledges that AGENCY does not hold a Certificate of Necessity and does NOT 
provide ambulance or non-emergency transport services, and that transport services 
are typically provided through a third party. Applicant, Service Recipient, or both, shall 
be solely responsible for any and all expenses associated with any transport services 
utilized by either. 
 

Page 115 of 194



 

 3 

 4) Response Time.  AGENCY shall make reasonable efforts to respond to 
Applicant’s emergency calls in a manner consistent with then-current agency protocol, 
subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. Applicant hereby 
acknowledges that response times are subject to variations due to existing weather 
conditions, road conditions, travel distance, traffic conditions, property identification, 
conflicting responses, equipment and manpower availability or allocation, and access to 
Applicant’s Property. Applicant acknowledges that because of the substantial distance 
involved, the minimum response time likely to be experienced by Applicant may exceed 
that of other recipients within the jurisdictional boundaries of AGENCY, and that no 
assurances are given by the AGENCY as to what ISO rating might apply to the 
Applicant’s Property.  
 
 5) Routing Information.  Applicant agrees that it shall provide AGENCY with 
current routing information to Applicant’s Property in a form acceptable to AGENCY Fire 
Chief, and will endeavor to inform all occupants of subject Property of the proper 
procedures to follow in case of fire.  
 
 6) Access.  Applicant hereby specifically acknowledges that standard access 
roads sufficient to allow AGENCY fire equipment to reach the scenes of emergency 
calls are a significant factor in AGENCY’s ability to respond to emergency calls within a 
reasonable and expeditious time. If access roadways are not maintained by other public 
service agencies, the responsibility of providing and maintaining adequate access rests 
solely with Applicant. Applicant hereby agrees to hold AGENCY harmless from and to 
fully indemnify AGENCY for any liability or damages arising from any delay which might 
occur by reason of limited, inadequate or poorly maintained access, inadequate address 
or access description, or failure of Applicant or the Property to comply with applicable 
fire codes, building codes, zoning codes or recommendations or requirements made by 
any agency or AGENCY.  
 
 Applicant hereby grants to AGENCY the right of ingress and egress and to enter 
upon Applicant’s Property for purposes of conducting inspections to determine 
accessibility, and to observe any other matters which may affect AGENCY’s ability to 
provide services under this Agreement. Nothing herein shall be construed as requiring 
AGENCY to make any such inspection, or to require that AGENCY report to the 
Property owner in regard to any accessibility issues.  
 
 7) Compensation; Calculation; Payment.  As consideration for AGENCY’s 
provision of Emergency Services under this Agreement, Applicant shall pay to AGENCY 
a sum (the “Service Fee”) equal to the amount which would be paid if the Applicant’s 
Property was located in and taxable by the respective fire district (either the Central 
Yavapai Fire District or the Chino Valley Fire District) which would otherwise contract to 
provide such services to Applicant at that fire district’s then current tax rate, any 
applicable bond debt servicing rates, plus an administrative fee equal to $50.00 as 
modified from time to time. The Service Fee shall be owed to AGENCY by Applicant 
even if there is no current county tax assessed on the Property: by reason of the fact 
that the property is considered to be non-taxable; because no net assessed value has 
been established; or for any other reason. In that event, for the purpose of calculating 

Page 116 of 194



 

 4 

the Service Fee to be paid by the Applicant, 10% of the full cash value as indicated by 
the county assessor’s office may be used as the assessed value, or if the full cash value 
is not available, the value of the property shall be established by way of appraisal 
conducted by a duly-licensed real estate appraiser provided by and solely at the cost of 
Applicant.  

 
If the property is appraised, the assessed value will be 10% of the appraisal. The 

then current fire district tax rate shall be applied to said property value, plus any then-
applicable bond debt service rates and an administrative fee equal to $50.00. If for 
some reason the current assessed value information is unavailable, then the Service 
Fee under this contract, as renewed, will be equal to the Service Fee charged for the 
immediately preceding service year, plus 10%, until such time as the current property 
value information becomes available, at which time the fee for the then-current year 
shall be recalculated and an adjustment to the Service Fee made. 
 
 Payment shall be due when this Agreement is signed; alternatively, payment 
arrangements may be approved in the sole discretion of AGENCY for quarterly 
payments with the first payment being due and payable simultaneous with the execution 
of this Agreement and thereafter on the first day of each subsequent quarter. Any 
payment not received within 30 days of the due date will be considered in default and 
may result in the termination of this Agreement. For the initial term of the Agreement, 
the parties agree that the fee shall be $134.99, but that such fee may be prorated 
(based on 12 months).  
 
 In the event of termination of this Agreement due to non-payment by Applicant of 
the agreed Service Fee within 30 days of due date, Applicant must reapply for 
Emergency Services pursuant to a new Agreement. In such event, the only option for 
payment under such new Agreement shall be for payment of all monies due in full at the 
time of execution of the new Agreement; other payment arrangements will only be 
considered upon renewal of the Agreement after completion of the initial term of the 
new Agreement.  
 
 The Service Fee paid to AGENCY by Applicant pursuant to this Agreement shall 
be considered earned by AGENCY when paid, and shall not be conditioned upon or 
modified by reason of the number of responses made by AGENCY to the Applicant’s 
property during the term of this Agreement. While Applicant shall be responsible for all 
Service Fees assessed under this Agreement, AGENCY also reserves the right to 
invoice any actual Service Recipients for the services provided under this Agreement 
according to the then-current fee schedule adopted by AGENCY, as amended from time 
to time. Said invoice shall be in addition to any Service Fee due under the terms of this 
Agreement. 
 
 8) Insurance.  Applicant shall provide AGENCY with a current certificate of 
liability and hazard insurance, together with the name and address of insurance agent, 
name of insurance company providing coverage, and insurance policy number.  
 

Page 117 of 194



 

 5 

 9) Waiver and Disclaimer of Liability.  Applicant agrees that AGENCY shall 
not be liable for any consequential damages to Applicant or any Service Recipient, 
including but not limited to any lost income or profits suffered by Applicant or any 
Service Recipient. In consideration of AGENCY’s agreement to provide services under 
the terms of this Agreement, Applicant agrees to hold AGENCY harmless and hereby 
releases AGENCY from and indemnifies AGENCY for any and all claims, demands, 
liability and causes of action that may arise as a result of AGENCY providing the 
services described herein. Applicant specifically agrees to hold AGENCY harmless 
from, in addition to the foregoing, any claims, demands, liability or causes of action 
which might arise out of AGENCY’s inability to provide, or any delay or limits in 
providing services, due in whole or in part to the conditions spelled out in Sections 3, 4, 
5, and 6 of this Agreement.  
 

10) No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement will be for the benefit of the 
parties named herein only and shall not be construed as having been entered into for 
the benefit of any third party.  

 
11) No Warranties.  Nothing herein shall be construed as a warranty by 

AGENCY against damages, whether to real property or personal property, which may 
result by way of fire, injury to a person, by accident or any other emergency occurring 
on Applicant’s Property.  

 
12) Limitation of Damages.  In the event of breach or non-performance by 

AGENCY, Applicant’s sole remedy shall be limited to the termination of this Agreement 
and refund of any unearned fees for that current contract year, the parties hereto having 
agreed that said fees are a reasonable amount of damages. This limitation of damages 
shall bind, without limitation, Service Recipients, family members, legal representatives, 
assigns and successors in interest of the Applicant. The waiver, hold harmless and 
indemnification provisions of this Agreement are for the benefit of AGENCY and shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement.  
 
 13) Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement by thirty (30) 
days’ written notice of termination delivered to the other party at these addresses:   
 

For AGENCY: 
 

Administration 
8555 E Yavapai Rd 
Prescott Valley, AZ 86314 
 
For Applicant: 
 
Gary and Carol Hanby 
PO Box 1438 

 

Page 118 of 194



 

 6 

 In the event of termination of this Agreement after the Applicant has paid the 
required payment due for that term, AGENCY shall return funds to the Applicant 
prorated on a per day basis for the period after the date of termination.  
  
 In the event Applicant sells the subject property or otherwise disposes of the 
same, this Agreement will terminate immediately upon notification from the Applicant of 
same; provided, however, that the indemnification requirements imposed on Applicant 
under this Agreement for incidents occurring during the term of this Agreement shall 
survive the termination hereof. Nothing herein shall prevent AGENCY from negotiating a 
new emergency services Agreement with the new owner of the subject property.  
 
 14) Cancellation Due to Conflict.  AGENCY may cancel this Agreement 
pursuant to the mandates of A.R.S. §38-511. 

 
15) Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be 

unconstitutional, invalid, or unenforceable, it shall be deemed severable; however, the 
remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
16) Fire Code Compliance.  Applicant hereby specifically acknowledges that 

all operations and activities, as well as new construction, and remodel of structures 
when applicable, will be in compliance with AGENCY’s adopted Fire Code.  

 
The undersigned warrants to AGENCY that the Applicant has the power to enter 

into this Agreement and that all necessary acts have been taken to enter into this 
Agreement.  
 
 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE & MEDICAL 
AUTHORITY 

APPLICANT 
 
 
By______________________________   
 Date Board Chair Date 
 
 
 
  ATTEST: 
 
By_____________________________    
 Date  Board Clerk Date 
 
 
 

Page 119 of 194



Effective Date:  04/10/200611/05/2015 Policy Name:  Board Officer Duties 
Revised Date:  12/14/2016 
Review Date:   Policy Number:  3.5 

 

 

Central Arizona Fire and Medical AuthorityCentral Yavapai Fire DistrictBoard Policy Manual Page 1 of 2 

BOARD OFFICER DUTIES 
 

Relative Information: All Board members are eligible for election and should view the 
election to office as a routine and expected responsibility of Board membership. Arizona 
Revised Statutes require each Board to elect a Chairperson man and a Clerk. While the 
term of office for the Chairperson and Clerk is one (1) year, there is no limitation on the 
number of sequential terms an individual may serve. 

Board officers are generally elected during the month of December, depending on 
ranges of Board terms; officers begin their term in January of the following year. Each 
elected officer takes office immediately and serves until the December first Board 
meeting of the following year, or until a successor is elected. 

The duties of the Chairpersonman include: 

1. Presiding at meetings of the Board of Directors. The Chairpersonman shall 
perform all of the duties prescribed by the Arizona Revised Statutes. The 
Chairpersonman is responsible for ensuring that that business of the public 
meetings is transacted in the proper order and is reasonably expedited observing 
appropriate procedure and decorum. 

2. Consulting with the Fire Chief regarding the preparation of each Board meeting 
agenda. 

3. Participating, along with other Board members, with all the rights of a member to 
discuss issues, make motions, nominate candidates, and to vote. 

4. Calling Special Meetings (study sessions, executive sessions, and/or additional 
regular sessions) of the Board as described by the Arizona Open Meeting Law. 

5. Signing official District Authority documents on behalf of the Board when 
authorized by the Board. 

6. Making appointments as may be required by law and/or for the orderly 
representation of the Board. 

The duties of the Clerk include: 

1. Serving as Chairpersonman in the absence of the Chairpersonman with all the 
powers and duties as described above. The Clerk shall have such other powers 
and duties as a majority of the Board may determine. 

2. Serving on such committees and/or as representative as appointed by the Board 
Chairpersonman. 

3. Ensuring accurate minutes of each Board meeting are taken, transcribed, and 
distributed. Ensuring official minutes are properly authenticated and maintained 
in chronological order. These duties are delegated to staff members under the 
supervision of the Clerk. 

4. Signing on behalf of the District Authority such documents that require two (2) 
signatures or as requested by the Chairpersonman. 

Page 120 of 194



Effective Date:  04/10/200611/05/2015 Policy Name:  Board Officer Duties 
Revised Date:  12/14/2016 
Review Date:   Policy Number:  3.5 

 

 

Central Arizona Fire and Medical AuthorityCentral Yavapai Fire DistrictBoard Policy Manual Page 2 of 2 

Policy Statement: It shall be the policy of the Board of Directors of Central Yavapai 
Fire DistrictCentral Arizona Fire and Medical Authority that election to Board office is an 
accepted obligation of Board membership and that the Board may annually elect a 
Chairpersonman and a Clerk as required by State Law. 

Cross References: 

Arizona Revised Statutes A.R.S. §48-805 Fire district; powers and duties 

 A.R.S. §48-803(E) District administered by a 
district board 

Board Policy Manual Policy 3.2 Director Responsibilities 

 Policy 3.7 Filling Board Vacancies 

 

 

Page 121 of 194



Effective Date:  11/05/2015 Policy Name:  Board Officer Duties 
Revised Date:   
Review Date:  12/01/2016 Policy Number:  3.5 

 

 

Central Arizona Fire and Medical AuthorityBoard Policy Manual Page 1 of 2 

BOARD OFFICER DUTIES 
 

Relative Information: All Board members are eligible for election and should view the 
election to office as a routine and expected responsibility of Board membership. Arizona 
Revised Statutes require each Board to elect a Chairperson and a Clerk. While the term 
of office for the Chairperson and Clerk is one (1) year, there is no limitation on the 
number of sequential terms an individual may serve. 

Board officers are generally elected during the month of December, depending on 
ranges of Board terms. Each elected officer takes office immediately and serves until 
the December Board meeting of the following year, or until a successor is elected. 

The duties of the Chairperson include: 

1. Presiding at meetings of the Board of Directors. The Chairperson shall perform 
all of the duties prescribed by the Arizona Revised Statutes. The Chairperson is 
responsible for ensuring that that business of the public meetings is transacted in 
the proper order and is reasonably expedited observing appropriate procedure 
and decorum. 

2. Consulting with the Fire Chief regarding the preparation of each Board meeting 
agenda. 

3. Participating, along with other Board members, with all the rights of a member to 
discuss issues, make motions, nominate candidates, and to vote. 

4. Calling Special Meetings (study sessions, executive sessions, and/or additional 
regular sessions) of the Board as described by the Arizona Open Meeting Law. 

5. Signing official Authority documents on behalf of the Board when authorized by 
the Board. 

6. Making appointments as may be required by law and/or for the orderly 
representation of the Board. 

The duties of the Clerk include: 

1. Serving as Chairperson in the absence of the Chairperson with all the powers 
and duties as described above. The Clerk shall have such other powers and 
duties as a majority of the Board may determine. 

2. Serving on such committees and/or as representative as appointed by the Board 
Chairperson. 

3. Ensuring accurate minutes of each Board meeting are taken, transcribed, and 
distributed. Ensuring official minutes are properly authenticated and maintained 
in chronological order. These duties are delegated to staff members under the 
supervision of the Clerk. 

4. Signing on behalf of the Authority such documents that require two (2) signatures 
or as requested by the Chairperson. 

Page 122 of 194



Effective Date:  11/05/2015 Policy Name:  Board Officer Duties 
Revised Date:   
Review Date:  12/01/2016 Policy Number:  3.5 

 

 

Central Arizona Fire and Medical AuthorityBoard Policy Manual Page 2 of 2 

Policy Statement: It shall be the policy of the Board of Directors of Central Arizona Fire 
and Medical Authority that election to Board office is an accepted obligation of Board 
membership and that the Board may annually elect a Chairperson and a Clerk as 
required by State Law. 

Cross References: 

Arizona Revised Statutes A.R.S. §48-805 Fire district; powers and duties 

 A.R.S. §48-803(E) District administered by a 
district board 

Board Policy Manual Policy 3.2 Director Responsibilities 

 Policy 3.7 Filling Board Vacancies 

 

 

Page 123 of 194



Engine 50 C Shift
Captain Fournier
Engineer Hlavacek
Firefighter Turner

P
a
g
e
 1

2
4
 o

f 1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 1

2
5
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 1

2
6
 o

f 1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 1

2
7
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 1

2
8
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 1

2
9
 o

f 1
9
4



 

20 December 2016  Page | 1  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Chief’s Report 
By Fire Chief Freitag 
 
We have completed our first video conference based all hands employee meetings. In the past, 
CYFD would hold the meetings twice a year in person which required overtime coverage. To 
reduce overhead while continuing to ensure we communicate with our personnel, we are utilizing 
GoToMeeting. We record the meetings for upload to a private YouTube Channel setup by Chief 
Tharp as well as for archiving within our GoToMeeting account. This will allow those who could 
not attend, or those who had to leave for a call, to watch the meetings.  
 
The architect hired to design the build out for the new admin building presented his preliminary 
drawings to staff on December 7th and will present adjusted drawings on December 14th. He has 
done a fantastic job taking into account our needs and our budget. Additionally, he drew three 
phases for the project. Phase one is the initial build which should get us through the next 10-15 
years. Phases two and three are used to show what future expansion could look like. This is 
important to our long-term planning as we have said from the beginning that this building allows 
us to grow to meet future demand.  
 
A Wage and Benefit Committee was formed by the labor group to study our current system and 
make recommendations for the future. They have visited with Chief Bliss and Chief Tharp about 
current benefits and the wage study produced by AFDA. We have a special Labor/Management 
meeting scheduled for Monday, December 19th to discuss the impact of the PSPRS numbers we 
received Thursday the 8th and had confirmed Monday the 12th.  
 
As Chief Tharp points out in his report, our PSPRS contribution rate for next year without 
impact from the Hall case has increased dramatically. The aggregate increase across the State is 
10% which means some are higher and some, like ours, is slightly lower. They attribute some of 
the increase to lower than projected return on investments and lower than projected pay 
increases. It is a vicious cycle of increased rates, decreased or stagnate pay which means they do 
not realize their estimates. Couple that with their continuous over projection of return on 
investment, and we end up with significant increases. While they do project a leveling over the 
next ten years, it is clear that they are basing their assumptions on flawed analysis once again. 
They continue to overestimate investment returns as well as across the board salary increases. 
Their approach would be akin to us telling you every year that we should budget on an expected 
5% increase in NAV and then being surprised when it doesn’t happen – repeat. It just does not 
make a lot of sense.  
 
Additionally, PSPRS has released their numbers for the new Tier 3 defined benefit plan. We 
were told throughout the process of PSPRS reform that the new plans would lower costs i.e. 
defined benefit was estimated at a 9% / 9% split and a defined contribution at a 9% / 9% split. 
The actuarial released Thursday, December 8th, and Monday, December 12th are quite different 
from what everyone was told for the defined benefit plan. Our overall split decreased from 9% to 
7.14%. However, they added a Tier 1 and 2 legacy charge on the employer side of the Tier 3. For 
CAFMA this means our Tier 3 contribution rate is over 35%. This was never disclosed during 
the reform process. I have sent an email to AFDA seeking clarification and as of this writing 



 

20 December 2016  Page | 2  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

have not heard back. We are not alone in our surprise with this change and are working with 
other chiefs and organizations to seek clarification.  
 
The bottom line for us is that PSPRS will have an impact on all aspects of our organization. 
Senior staff will be meeting Wednesday, December 14th for further discussion and analysis. 
While PSPRS says they see a leveling we are not confident that their projected leveling meets 
what we would project. However, based on historical data, it is possible that the next several 
years could be much lower than we have seen for a while. If this is the case, we will have far 
more options. If not, our options narrow significantly. As staff, we will stay on top of this issue 
and continue to engage at the State level to ensure we have the best available information.  
 
Chief Tharp received a little better news on the health insurance front as it appears our budget 
estimates may be just slightly higher than the real increase. We hope to have hard numbers in the 
next couple months, but for now we have numbers close enough for a solid budget estimate.  
 
We have started working in earnest on the senior staff succession plan. Our hope is to have the 
plans completed within the next three months. Chiefs Bliss and Polacek retire in less than four 
years. They take with them tremendous institutional knowledge and expertise. To that end, we 
need to begin developing candidates yesterday. Our plan is to set a base of educational 
knowledge for all Assistant Chief positions, and build individual expertise from there. Specific 
course work will include classes in statistics, accounting, communications, executive planning, 
executive finance, etc. In addition, we will develop a transition plan to ensure we do not lose 
valuable time once the Chiefs leave and new folks are promoted – a budget will be included. 
Three to four years sounds like a long time, but we recognize that it’s not.  
 
I will be attending the AFDA conference next month in Laughlin, as well as the AZ Fire Chiefs 
Presidential Forum scheduled just prior to AFDA. 
  



 

20 December 2016  Page | 3  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Administration  
By Assistant Chief Tharp 
 
This month and last has been full of interesting reports. As many of you know, the Hall Case 
regarding EORP – Elected Officials Retirement Plan (PSPRS) was decided by the Arizona 
Supreme Court on a split decision on November 10, 2016. EORP is a subdivision of the much 
larger organization of the Arizona Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS). I have 
provided a copy of the decision (which was 3 in favor and 2 against) ruling to reverse the prior 
instituted pension contribution changes for existing PSPRS members by Senate Bill 1609 back in 
2011.  
  
The crux of the decision reverses the incremental increase of the employees’ contribution rates 
from 7.65% (back in 2011) to 11.65% (currently). Ultimately, the decision will force PSPRS to 
refund all contributions over the 7.65% for employees hired prior to July 1, 2011 for the periods 
of July 1, 2012 (when the increases began) until present. If you were hired after July 1, 2011, (to 
my understanding in reading the decision so far), you are still subject to the 11.65% contribution 
rule.  
  
How this will affect CAFMA (and other fire, law enforcement, public safety) will be that all 
those employees will have their contributions reduced back to 7.65% (again, we do not have 
clear direction as to when this will occur) which will increase the employer contribution rates for 
the future. We will have to see how this impact will be handled throughout the state as over 70% 
of fire districts statewide have $100,000 or less of taxing capacity (in other words, they are at or 
really close to the $3.25 cap). The implications of this ruling will have a significant ripple effect 
in public safety statewide, and we know that the Supreme Court has remanded the “details” of 
the refund and allocation of the unfunded liability back to the lower courts with the parties 
having to come to an agreement. Once the settlement and details are worked out, then they will 
reopen the PARKER vs PSPRS case to (hopefully) apply the same settlement details. This 
negotiation may still take months to work out.  
 
This leads into the PSPRS aggregate actuarial report (statewide) for the health of the fund and 
the required contribution rates for employers. The report clearly notes that the reported numbers 
are not an effect of the Hall Case, and they state that the results “will likely not have a significant 
impact on the contribution rates in future valuations”. I am as dubious of this statement as I am 
of their report noting that the aggregate employer contribution rate will maintain just over 52% 
for about 10 years and slowly adjust downward. The primary reasons for my doubts is stated in 
their report as they are making investment earning assumptions of 7.5% and planning on  
increased payroll of 4% per year. Historically, PSPRS investment rates of return have been 6% 
(or less) and even when the CYFD had a wage scale of 5% step increases, we did not see an 
average increase in payroll of 4% due to the numbers of employees who were in “longevity” 
versus “steps”…not to mention all the years that CVFD and CYFD had frozen wages.  
 
Remember that the contribution rate for FY 2017 for CYFD was supposed to be 38.85% and 
CVFD was supposed to be 24.88%. Combined with CAFMA, the rate was calculated at 34.69% 
for the employer for FY 2017. The newly calculated FY 2018 employer contribution rate for 



 

20 December 2016  Page | 4  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

CAFMA is 43.73% - an increase of 9.04%. What that actually translates into is a 26% increase in 
budgeted PSPRS contributions for next year’s budget. I only point this out because this singular 
expense is having such a huge impact in our budget, and it is not over. The implications of this 
increase affects other employee benefits, capital planning, personnel hiring, and yes, tax rates. As 
with all successful organizations, we will analyze, evaluate, create a plan and update the plan to 
deal with this and other financial challenges.  
 
…and a Happy NEW Year…  
  



 

20 December 2016  Page | 5  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Fire Prevention 
By Fire Marshal Chase 
 
Construction: 
• Plan review meeting for new 1,500 sf metal storage building - 2148 Road 1 E. in Chino 

Valley. 

• Maurices clothing store will be opening in the Crossroads on Highway 69 next to Rue 21. 

• Reviewed plans for a 20,000 sf two-story addition to Yavapai College, Prescott Valley. 

• Revised building plans for addition to the Donut Hole on Highway 69 in Prescott Valley.  

• Maverik Gas Station on Highway 69 in front of the Prescott Country Club is in the process of 
adding additional fuel pumps. 

• Construction continues for Native Grill and Wings located in the Crossroads on Highway 69, 
Prescott Valley.  

• Construction continues at the cultivation site on Valley Road in Prescott Valley. 

• We are working with the Town of Prescott Valley on fire hydrant placement and water 
supply for 46 duplex units in the area of Nace Lane and Stevens Drive in Prescott Valley. 

• We have had an increase in residential fire sprinkler plan reviews and home site inspections 
for sprinkler rough in and finals. 

• An initial plan review at Yavapai County Development Services was attended for Badger 
Mountain Base Camp off of Overland Trail in Prescott. This property is over 46 acres, and 
they are looking at having over 200 units consisting of multifamily, mobile home, and town 
homes. 

General: 
• The Flying High Turkey Drive was a success. The Prescott Valley Fry’s location collected 

620 turkeys, $2,600 cash, and 3,301 pounds of other food items. A big thank you to Engineer 
Mike Kontz and Firefighter Gordon Dibble for spending the day at Fry’s with Truck 50. 
Thank you to Captain Nick Fournier for helping to have this event covered. 

• Assistant Fire Marshal Andie Smith is at home recovering from knee replacement surgery. 
She is doing well and will hopefully return to work in a light duty capacity sometime after 
the first of the year. 

• On November 22nd Fire Inspectors Mandy Ayars, Chuck Dowdy, and I attended the Yavapai 
County Fire Investigator Task Force meeting. We received training from an evidence 
collection specialist out of the Phoenix area. 

• I attended the Republican Women’s Convention on November 15th. Thank you Board 
Member Darlene Packard for the invitation. 

• Fire Inspectors Mandy Ayars and Chuck Dowdy have been checked off to respond water 
tenders or the utility vehicle to fire scenes. This will add two more personnel to help get these 



 

20 December 2016  Page | 6  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

vehicles to the scenes when they are dispatched. Thank you to Captain Brian Burch for 
providing this training. 

• We are continuing to work with the Town of Dewey-Humboldt on their Firewise efforts. We 
are assisting them on two chipper days with grant money that will cover the cost of the 
chipping services. 

• Assistant Fire Marshal Smith, Fire Inspector Brett Lucas with Prescott Fire Department, and 
I teamed up to teach Fire Investigation and Fire Inspection training at the Captain’s Academy 
held at CARTA on November 2nd. 

Events attended/requested by CAFMA: 
• November 15 - tour of Station 59 (85 students from Coyote Springs Elementary) --A Shift, 

Administrative Assistant Teresa Frawley, and Fire Inspector Mandy Ayars 

• November 16 - tour of station 53 (96 students from Granville Elementary) - C Shift and 
Administrative Assistant Teresa Frawley 

• November 26 - Toy Drive at Wal-Mart on Prescott Lakes Parkway - Charlie Reyes assisted 
with the public education engine 

• November 30 - Christian Academy of Prescott - Captain Brian Burch spoke about fire safety 
to approximately 35 preschoolers and kindergarteners 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Fire Prevention Activities 

166 Business Inspections 

13 Construction Inspections / Reviews 

20 Alarm / Sprinkler Testing and Plan Reviews 

4 Fire Investigations 

80 School Programs / Public Talks 

5 Preconstruction Meetings / Plan Reviews 

6 Defensible Space Assessments 



 

20 December 2016  Page | 7  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Operations 
By Assistant Chief Polacek 
 
Congratulations to Captain Alex McKinnon who retired December 8th. Captain McKinnon has 
been with the district for over 25 years. We wish him a happy and healthy retirement. 
 
Operations has been working to replace the three personnel that left our organization to the North 
West. This left three engineer vacancies. We completed the testing for Captain and provided a 
list to fill vacancies that will be left from the retirement of Captain Joe Kelley and Captain Brian 
Cole this summer. The list will be good until we test again next year. The engineers test is 
complete and we conducted Chief interviews for everyone on the list. We will be filling three 
positions immediately and will maintain the list until we test again next year. This brings us to 
the firefighters that will be replacing the three firefighters that will be promoting to engineer. We 
have offered jobs to Caden Burch, Russell Smith and Jace Hall. They will be going through their 
pre-employment testing and starting the Fire Fighter academy January 9th. The academy will last 
6 weeks and will provide the new recruits all of the essential training.  
  
I will be attending the Prescott City Council meeting on December 20th. The City will be 
discussing the New CAD system and looking at approval to move forward with the Tri Tech 
CAD system. I will be in attendance to show my support and to answer any questions that the 
City Council may have. The Prescott Police Department opened up an internal search for the 
position of Dispatch supervisor to oversee PRCC. After we could not fill the position with the 
nationwide search, they decided to open up the position internally and promote a Lieutenant 
from the police department to take the reins for PRCC. They received three applications and will 
be conducting a test to promote someone into the position. We are looking forward to having 
someone fill this important role. 
  
Captains Cole and Niemynski traveled to Georgia and South Carolina to help fight the wildland 
fires that plagued the Southeast. They had a good experience but stated it was a learning 
experience for them when crews use leave blowers to create a fire line. This is something that we 
are not accustomed to. Both were strike team leaders on different fires and returned home safely. 
  



 

20 December 2016  Page | 8  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
2016 Honor Guard Year in Review 
By Captain Fournier 

A Busy Year – It is certainly an understatement to 
suggest that a lot happened in 2016. To me, the 
year felt like the longest "to do" list that ever 
existed. The Honor Guard was not exempt from 
the busyness, in fact all totaled we represented 
CAFMA at more than 30 different events this 
year. In order to paint the picture for what the 
members of the Central Arizona Honor Guard 
(CAHG) do with the great responsibility that you 
all entrust in us I put together an "Honor Guard 
Year in Review." 
 
In January, the Chino Valley and Central Yavapai 
Honor Guards began the process of joining to 
become one team. The idea that "unity is strength" 
inspired our goal to unite the two teams in a 

smooth distinguished fashion. We appreciate the value of being stronger for each other and the 
brother/sisterhood. This effort of uniting, at least in part, required the work of making our 
uniforms uniform, designing a new logo, developing our pipes and drums band, training 
together, and building a cache of equipment for both battalions. We have more work to do, but 
the process is dynamic like so many things in the fire service. We are constantly learning, 
improving, and developing as a team. I am proud of the 19 men that serve on the Central Arizona 
Honor Guard/Pipes and Drums. Every single member is committed to achieving this goal of 
unity and to remaining steadfast and focused on our mission. We are a dedicated, professional, 
vigilant, and unified team. 
 
Our mission is to honor our law enforcement and fire service brothers and sisters by ensuring 
respectful and dignified care of the fallen and their loved ones from the time of the tragedy 
through funeral services and by memorializing them annually so that they and their sacrifice are 
remembered forever. Simultaneously, we honor the flag by acting as guardians of the Colors, 
meaning that we proudly accept the responsibility of protecting, presenting, and posting the 
American Flag. I like to say that we are in the business of "honoring the fallen and honoring the 
flag." 
 
With the mission in mind our members were honored to be present to pay respects at the funerals 
for two Arizona police officers that died in the line of duty: Phoenix Police Officer David 
Glasser and Show Low Police Officer Darrin Reed. We were also proud to serve at funeral 
services for fire personnel: retired Prescott Fire Deputy Chief Harvey Emery, Gila River Fire 
Deputy Chief David Martin, Williamson Valley Firefighter Josh Carter, and Hellsgate Firefighter 
Bill Dupke.  
 

Central Arizona Honor Guard 



 

20 December 2016  Page | 9  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

In 2013 after performing the funeral services for the Granite Mountain Hotshots, we promised 
the families that we would be present at the annual memorials to honor their loved ones. We 
buried their sons and husbands; it is our intention to stand by this obligation forever. In addition 
to that promise, thousands of firefighters came to Prescott/Prescott Valley during that time to pay 
their respects. We feel that it is our duty to grant them the same courtesy. In 2016 to fulfill our 
promise to the families and to pay it forward to the brothers and sisters of the fallen we rendered 
honor at the IAFF Fallen Firefighter Memorial in Colorado Springs, the Arizona Fallen 
Firefighter Memorial in Phoenix, the 9/11 Memorial Ceremony in Prescott Valley, the GMIHC 
Memorial in Prescott, and the GMIHC Memorial in Yarnell.  
 
The team was honored to guard the Colors at a wide variety of events such as CAFMA badge 
pinnings, retirement ceremonies, the 2016 Firefighter Academy Graduation, community events 
and certain charity events. We posted or presented the Colors on the following occasions: to 
open the Arizona Wildfire Academy Banquet, the Chino Valley Little League Opening 
Ceremony, for the National Anthem at a Arizona Diamondbacks' game, at the Salute to Heroes' 
Event, the Wade Parker Memorial Baseball Game, the GMIHC Memorial Run in Yarnell, the 
Blessing of the Field for the Healing Field, at the recent dedication ceremony for the new Granite 
Mountain Hotshots State Park/Trail in Yarnell, and the Yavapai Community College Fall 
Semester Firefighter I and II Class Graduation. 
 
The CAHG is very involved in the community. For instance, our bagpipers perform at a wide 
variety of events locally such as the Memorial Day Ceremony at the Prescott National Cemetery. 
Pipe Major Doug Copenhaver is a member of the Arizona Fire Service Pipe Band and plays with 
them at events around the State on a regular basis. Some of our members serve on the Planning 
Committee for the Prescott Valley Healing Field of Northern Arizona and are part of the 
leadership for the setup of the 3,000 flag memorial. The Honor Guard planned, organized, 
promoted, and executed the Second Annual Patriot Run fundraiser. We have been invited by the 
VA to attend funeral services at the Prescott National Cemetery to represent the fire service for 
military veterans that were also firefighters. At the State level we have been asked by the PFFA 
Honor Guard Commander to take the lead of the Color Guard Detail at the annual Arizona Fallen 
Firefighters Memorial. The Color Guard Detail includes First Colors which is the US, Arizona, 
and PFFA flags as well as all of the unit and department flags. We also have members who have 
been invited to serve as Honor Guard Liaisons for the Arizona LAST Team at fallen firefighter 
funerals and memorials around the State. 
 
This brings me to the end of this long winded recap. Simply put, we had a busy year and 2017 is 
shaping up to be just as busy as its predecessor. Looking ahead to our known event schedule, the 
unexpected events that come up, continued work on current projects, and new projects that we 
will be starting, it's nice to know that you have our back. It is important to the members of the 
CAHG to express our appreciation to our families and to you, the CAFMA family for the 
enduring support that you give us. Special thanks to our wives and kids for being understanding 
and forgiving of us for doing this difficult task that we volunteer for. Thanks to you, fellow 
firefighters for the shift coverage that you provide for us (especially those of you that trade with 
Doug Copenhaver) and thank you for your volunteered time to help with the Healing Field, the 
Patriot Run, and the 9/11 Memorial. Thank you to Chief Freitag, Chief Polacek, and Warehouse 



 

20 December 2016  Page | 10  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Operations Manager Erik Trujillo who make sure that we have what we need to do this job. 
Thank you to Board Member Darlene Packard who volunteers as Honor Guard Publicist, Agent, 
and Leader of the Central Arizona Honor Guard Fan Club. We appreciate all of you for your 
efforts, your time, and your kind words of encouragement and pride. Your support means more 
than words can express! 
 

 

 
 
 

  



 

20 December 2016  Page | 11  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Planning and Logistics 
By Assistant Chief Bliss 
 
This month’s highlight for facilities is the new roof at Station 57. It was completed the 1st part of 
December without trouble and should resolve the leaks that we had this last monsoon. Work was 
also done on the new Admin building to close off the seeping that was occurring through the top 
of the parapet wall. Tech Services continues to work on installing the new MDT systems into B6 
vehicles. After Engine 62 and Engine 611 are finished the B6 vehicle will also be re-worked. 
There was a good response to the new portable radios that were placed in each station for 
familiarization. They have been collected again because the process of getting all of the radios 
into service is taking longer than expected. This is partially due to fitting the work between other 
projects and partially due to more programing time than anticipated. We are currently trying to 
verify the frequency lists in the Sedona/Verde Valley area to make sure that our programing is 
correct. 
 
Coordination of turn-out purchases has been Erik’s big challenge recently. The 10 year 
expiration date on turnout coats and pants means that we must be very careful with individual 
garment tracking and advance planning for replacement. The expiration dates mean that we can’t 
stock very far ahead of time because anything sitting on the shelf is losing usable life. With 
approximately 250 sets of turn-outs we replace an average of 25 a year. Of course the average is 
only a guide and doesn’t give any information about what sizes are needed or what part of the 
fiscal year the new equipment must arrive by. The process we have for managing replacement 
involves identifying individuals who have gear within 6 months of expiration and making 2 or 3 
purchases a year for the specific sizes needed. 
 
The contracts for the apparatus purchases that were approved last month have been delivered and 
Domenic is working on coordinating the pre-construction meetings with the manufacturer. This 
process is a little more extensive this time around because of the Ladder Company, which 
requires a separate visit to the factory that actually builds the ladder assembly. These meetings 
are usually smooth but are essential in making sure that details are clear before actual 
manufacture begins. 
  



 

20 December 2016  Page | 12  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Training 
By Training Chief Feddema 
 
This past month was busy with a variety of activities. The CAFMA personnel meetings were 
held at CARTA and for the first time they were also broadcast to the stations. This helped to 
reduce overtime and kept the engines within their areas. We will be looking at this as an option 
in the future for other training activities. Our quarterly training continues to go well as crews 
work through the truck company operations and forcible entry. The captains' testing process also 
concluded successfully with all four candidates doing very well. Four individuals from other 
agencies were brought in to help evaluate the candidates as they went through multiple stations. 
The feedback regarding our testing process was very positive. They also felt that the training and 
development within our organization was highlighted in the positive performance of the 
candidates going through the process. It is always nice to get an outside perspective on our 
personnel and our training and development programs. We will conduct an after action review of 
the testing process to discuss the feedback from the outside graders and how we can improve the 
process. 
 
CARTA also hosted a National Fire Academy (NFA) off-campus course titled Exercising 
Leadership Through Difficult Conversations. This is part of their Executive Skills Series and was 
an opportunity for our personnel in the Operations and Non-Operations Divisions. We had 
several CAFMA personnel who attended a course that was designed to strengthen skills in 
communication. The NFA offers several off-campus courses throughout the state, and we were 
thankful to be able to host this course.  
 
As we wrap up 2016, we are working on the training schedule for 2017. There are several 
challenges moving forward in 2017. One of the challenges is centered on the crews “productive 
time”. This is the timeframe in which personnel are focused on CAFMA activities. As the 
organization grows, so does the competition for this time. There are many other department 
related activities that fill up this time, not including emergency incidents. The challenge is to 
develop a schedule that meets the needs of the organization and is realistic based on time 
limitations. The other challenge is the budgetary restraints. We are making adjustments to our 
planned events based on budgetary limitations. This is a challenge that can be overcome with 
creativity. We will continue to work on providing training that focuses on the needs of CAFMA. 
 
  



 

20 December 2016  Page | 13  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Response Report 
By GIS | Records Management Specialist Freeman 
 

 

Responses in District
TOTAL FIRE 10 In District Total
        BLDG FIRE 2 E50 110 113
        BLDG CONTAINED 4 E51 28 131
        MOBILE HOME/PORTABLE BLDG 0 E53 135 136
        VEHICLE 3 E54 98 101
        BRUSH/GRASS 1 E57 42 42
        OTHER 0 E58 108 109

Fire is 1.19% of call volume E59 89 94
TOTAL EMS 549 T50 3 3

EMS is 65.2% of call volume E61 94 94
OVERPRESSURE 0 E62 113 115
HAZMAT 16 E63 44 45
SERVICE 125
GOOD INTENT 110
FALSE ALARM/OTHER 32 MONTH YTD

Other is 33.61% of call volume PFD 604 7,634
TOTAL # OF CALLS 842 CAFMA 842 10,081

GCFD 3 132
Residential/Commercial Fire Loss $265,650 OD 5 57
Vehicle Fire Loss $75,000 WKFD 2 41

Calls in Town of Chino Valley 94
Calls in Town of Prescott Valley 387
Calls in Town of Dewey-Humboldt 35 500 EMS
Calls in rest of District 326 71 Cancelled en Route
Calls out of District 2 60 Public Service Assistance

45 Assist Invalid
Average total # of calls per day 28.07 23 Vehicle Accident w/Injuries
Avg fire calls per day 0.33
Avg EMS calls per day 18.23  
Avg all other calls per day 9.43 50:  68  57:  5

51:  32 61:  8
Auto Aid Given                       101 53:  7 62:  6
Auto Aid Received                    54 54:  8 63:  7
Mutual Aid Given                  1 58:  8
Mutual Aid Received              0 59:  5 TOTAL: 154

Move Ups by Station

Top 5 Call Types

Unit Responses 

Land Area:  248 sq. miles      Population:  86,865     Fire Stations:  10 Staffed Stations

Call Volume at PRCC



Yavapai Regional Medical Center 

02/2015 

CLIENT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

This Client Services Agreement (this "Agreement") is entered into this ___ day of __________, 

20__, by and between Yavapai Community YRMC Association d/b/a Yavapai Regional Medical 

Center ("YRMC"), and Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority (CLIENT). 

 

In consideration of the terms and covenants of this Agreement, CLIENT and YRMC hereby 

agree as follows: 

 

I. TERMS AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

 

a. This Agreement shall become effective on October 15, 2016, and shall continue in 

effect for two (2) year period unless either party provides written notice to the 

other party of its intention not to renew. 

b. Termination 

i. For cause. Either party shall have cause for termination of this Agreement if 

either party defaults in the performance of any covenant, agreement, term or 

provision of this Agreement. 

ii. YRMC shall have cause for termination of this Agreement if payment is not 

received within 15 days notice that payment is past due. 

iii. Either party may terminate this Agreement, without cause, by providing the 

other party the thirty (30) day's written notice. 

iv. This Agreement shall be subject to the conflicts provisions of A.R.S.§38-

511. 

v. This Agreement may be terminated in the event of non-appropriation of 

funds or insufficient funds to allow compliance with the terms hereof.   

 

II. SERVICES 

 

a. Services 

i. YRMC shall provide upon request by CLIENT and to the extent available 

Services (hereinafter referred to as "services") ordered by a member of the 

CLIENT's Staff for a CLIENT patient. 

ii. YRMC will invoice CLIENT monthly for individual services and CLIENT 

agrees to reimburse YRMC for the services and at the rates listed in 

EXHIBIT I. 

iii. The Parties each affirm that the service provided hereunder and the rates 

charged therefore are both commercially reasonable and represent fair 

market value for the services provided. In no event shall the Parties modify 

these rates so as to reflect the value or number of referrals of patients or 

business between the Parties. 

iv. CLIENT is responsible for procuring and properly documenting the order 

for the medical tests required. Orders shall include patient name, date, 

reason for the exam, diagnosis and authorized CLIENT staff signature.  

v. Client is responsible to pay the monthly billing as specified on EXHIBIT I 

and be due and payable within thirty (30) days of billing date on the invoice 

(“Due Date”).  Any amount not paid within thirty (30) days after the Due 

Date shall bear interest from the Due Date until paid at a rate of one percent 

(1%) per month or the maximum permitted by law, whichever is less.   

Page 143 of 194



Yavapai Regional Medical Center 

02/2015 

vi. YRMC agrees and understands to only look to CLIENT for payment and 

shall not bill any patient or third party for Services provided under this 

agreement. 

vii. Both parties agree to participate in quality control assessment and 

improvement activities of the other as directed by policies and/or governing 

body. 

viii. YRMC will provide the needed equipment to perform the services. 

ix. YRMC shall have sole discretion to establish the minimum qualifications 

necessary for the performance of any service under this Agreement.  

 

 

III. COOPERATION IN REGULATORY AND ACCREDITATION MATTERS 

 

CLIENT and YRMC agree that each will cooperate with the other promptly and efficiently in 

order to satisfy all Federal, State, Local requirements, rules, statutes, and laws connected 

with all services of the agreement including but not limited to Medicare, AHCCCS and any 

accreditation agency. 

 

IV. PERSONNEL 

 

YRMC is performing the service and duties hereunder as an independent contractor and not 

as an employee, agent, partner of or joint venture with CLIENT.  YRMC is required to 

comply with A.R.S. §41-4401, and hereby warrants that it will, at all times during the term of 

this Agreement, comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to the employment of 

its employees, the requirements of A.R.S. §41-4401, and with the e-verification requirements 

of A.R.S. §23-214(A) (together the “state and federal immigration laws”).  YRMC further 

agrees to ensure that each subcontractor that performs any work under this Agreement 

likewise complies with the state and federal immigration laws.  A breach of a warranty 

regarding compliance with the state and federal immigration laws shall be deemed a material 

breach of the Agreement and the party who breaches may be subject to penalties up to and 

including termination of the Agreement.  CAFMA retains the legal right to inspect the papers 

of any contractor or subcontract employee working under the terms of this Agreement to 

ensure that the other party is complying with the warranties regarding compliance with the 

state and federal immigration laws.   

 

 

V. NON-DISCRIMINATION 

 

YRMC and CAFMA both warrant that they comply with any state and federal laws, rules and 

regulations which mandate that all persons, regardless of race, color, creed, religion, sex, 

genetic information, age, national origin, disability, familial status or political affiliation, 

shall have equal access to employment opportunities, including but not limited to the 

Americans with Disabilities Act.  Both parties shall take affirmative action to ensure that 

they will not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by or 

pursuant to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 

1973, Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, and the Age 

Discrimination Act of 1975.  The parties agree to comply with Arizona Governor’s Executive 

Order 2000-4, and Arizona Governor’s Executive Order 2009-09 – “Prohibition of 

Discrimination in Contracts, Non-Discrimination in Employment by Government 

Cooperators and Sub Contractors, Superseding Executive Order 99-4 and Amending 

Page 144 of 194



Yavapai Regional Medical Center 

02/2015 

Executive Order 75-5”. Further, the parties will not participate either directly or indirectly in 

the discrimination prohibited by the Genetic Nondiscrimination Act of 2008. 

 

VI. INSURANCE 

 

CLIENT agrees to maintain general liability and professional liability coverage for CLIENT 

and its personnel in the minimum of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and 

three million dollars ($3,000,000.00) aggregate. CLIENT shall provide YRMC a certificate 

of insurance evidencing this coverage, as EXHIBIT II to this agreement. CLIENT shall 

provide written notice to YRMC at least thirty (30) days before the cancellation or 

modification of such insurance. 

 

YRMC agrees to maintain general liability and professional liability coverage for YRMC and 

its personnel in the minimum of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and three 

million dollars ($3,000,000.00) aggregate. YRMC shall provide CLIENT a certificate of 

insurance evidencing this coverage, as an EXHIBIT III to this agreement. YRMC shall 

provide written notice to CLIENT at least thirty (30) days before the cancellation or 

modification of such insurance. 

 

Each of the parties hereto will be responsible for paying any deductible or self-retention due 

under its own policy.  Further, each insurance policy relied upon hereunder shall provide 

coverage for the general operations of the Party hereto and its affiliates purchasing same and 

shall provide coverage applicable to but not specifically limited to this Agreement and the 

Services provided hereunder.  All policies relied upon hereunder shall provide for the waiver 

of the right of subrogation against the other party hereto.   

 

VII. HOLD HARMLESS 

 

YRMC, for itself and on behalf of its employees, agent(s),a and independent contractors 

agrees to indemnify and hold harmless CLIENT, its agents, officers, directors, employees, 

and other independent contractors pursuant to Arizona law and the possible qualified 

immunities arising thereunder from any and all claims, losses, demands, fees, attorneys fees 

or expenses, causes of action, costs, damages, and expenses against CLIENT or that the 

CLIENT incurs as a result of a claim resulting from or arising in connection with any breach 

by YRMC of any provisions of this Agreement, the violation of any statute, rule, regulation 

or order, or an intentional reckless, or negligent act or omission by the YRMC, its 

employees, agents, or independent contractors, other than any costs, expenses, claims, 

demands, causes of action, damages, or judgments that arise out of or are attributable to the 

negligent act or omission of CLIENT. Provisions of this Indemnifications section shall 

survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

 

CLIENT, for itself and on behalf of its employees, agents and independent contractors agrees 

to indemnify and hold harmless YRMC, its agent, officers, directors, employees, and other 

independent contracts from any and all claims, losses, demands, fees, attorneys fees or 

expenses, causes of actions, costs, damages, and expenses against YRMC or that the YRMC 

incurs as a result of a claim resulting from or arising in connection with any breach by 

CLIENT of any provision of the Agreement, the violations of any statute, rule, regulation, or 

order, or an intentional, reckless, or negligent act or omission by CLIENT, its employees, 

agents, or independent contractors, other than any costs, expenses, claims, demands, causes 

of action, damages, or judgments that arise out of or are attributable to the negligent act or 

Page 145 of 194



Yavapai Regional Medical Center 

02/2015 

omission of YRMC. Provisions of this Indemnifications section shall survive the termination 

or expiration of this Agreement. 

 

VIII. ACCESS TO RECORDS 

 

The Centers of Medicare and Medicaid ("CMS"), the Comptroller General of the 

Government Accounting Office ("GAO"), or their authorized representatives shall have 

reasonable access to any and all records pertaining to the Services provided by this 

agreement for a period of four (4) years after the furnishing of Services hereunder. 

 

IX. SEVERABILITY 

 

If any clause, phrase, sentence or provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid or 

unenforceable (in whole or in part) under present or future laws effective during the term of 

this Agreement or any extension thereof, then and in that event, it is the intention of the 

parties hereto that the remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected by the illegal, 

invalid, or unenforceable portion and it is also the intention of the parties to the Agreement 

that in lieu of each clause, phrase, sentence or provision of the Agreement that is illegal, 

invalid, or unenforceable, there may be added as a part of the Agreement a clause, phrase, 

sentence or provision as similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable clause, 

phrase, sentence or provision as may be possible and be legal, valid, and enforceable. 

 

X.       BINDING EFFECT 

 

This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto. There shall be no 

third party beneficiaries to this Agreement. 

 

XI.  NO PARTNERSHIP OR JOINT VENTURE 

 

The relationship between YRMC and CLIENT hereunder and at all times shall remain solely 

that of a vendor of Services and purchaser of Services and shall not be deemed to constitute a 

partnership or joint venture. 

 

XII.  NOTICES 

 

All notices required under this Agreement shall be deemed to have been properly served if 

delivered in writing personally or by registered or certified mail to YRMC as follows: 

 

YRMC Boyd P. Murayama   

  Director of Physician Practices 

  1003 Willow Creek Road; Prescott AZ  86301 

   

 CLIENT _______________________ 

  _______________________ 

  _______________________ 

  _______________________    

 

Date of service or a notice service by mail shall be the date on which the notice is deposited 

in a post office of the United States Post Office Department. 

 

Page 146 of 194



Yavapai Regional Medical Center 

02/2015 

XIII. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 

This instrument and its attachments, if any, contain the entire agreement between the parties 

and there are no covenants, express or implied, except as contained herein. No statement, 

promises or inducement made by either party or agent of either party that is not contained in 

this written agreement shall be valid or binding. No waiver of any condition or covenant of 

this Agreement by either party shall be deemed to imply to constitute a further waiver of the 

same or any other condition or covenant of this Agreement. 

  

XIV. ASSIGNMENT 

 

No assignment of this Agreement or the rights or obligations hereunder shall be valid without 

the specific written consent of both parties hereto. 

 

XV. GOVERNING LAW 

 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of Arizona. 

 

XVI. AMENDMENTS 

 

This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument signed by both parties. 

 

XVII. COUNTERPARTS 

 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an 

original and all of which shall together constitute one agreement. 

 

XVIII. ATTORNEY'S FEES 

 

In the event of arbitration or litigation to enforce the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing 

party shall be entitled to an award for its reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred. 

 

XIX. EXECUTION WARRANTY 

 

Each individual signing this Agreement warrants that such execution has been duly 

authorized by the party for which such individual is signing, that the execution and 

performance of this Agreement by such party ahs been duly authorized by all applicable laws 

and regulations and all necessary corporate action, if any, and that this Agreement constitutes 

the valid and enforceable obligation of such party in accordance with the terms of this 

Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement in duplicate on the 

dates set forth below. 

    

Page 147 of 194



Yavapai Regional Medical Center 

02/2015 

   YRMC 

 

   By:  _____________________________  

   

   Name: John R. Amos  

 

   Title: President & Chief Executive Officer   

 

   Date:  _____________________________  

 

   CLIENT 

 

   By:  _____________________________  

   

   Name: _____________________________  

 

   Title: _____________________________   

 

   Date:  _____________________________  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibits. The following Exhibits are hereby incorporated by reference herein. 

 

 

Page 148 of 194



Yavapai Regional Medical Center 

02/2015 

EXHIBIT I 

 

SERVICES/RATES 

 

WELLNESS INITIATIVE 

 
 

  

Physical Exam 2 2 1 MD $160.00

Visual Acuity 2 2 1 MD $0.00 included in physical

Hearing 2 2 1 MD $34.00

Spirometry 2 2 1 MD $32.00

Body Composition Bi Annually Bi Annually Bi Annually CYFD

Lab Tests

CBC 2 2 1 Lab $8.00

CMP (metabolic profile) 2 2 1 Lab $13.00

Lipid profile, fasting 2 2 1 Lab $16.00

Urinalysis 2 2 1 Lab $3.00

Urine for Heavy Metals Hazmat Only Hazmat Only Hazmat Only Lab $23.00

Chest X-ray Entry/Symptoms SMK/S x 4 SMK/S x 2 X-ray $59.00

EKG 4 4 2 Lab/Facility $16.00 Done at clinic

Aerobic Capacity Bi Annually Bi Annually Bi Annually CYFD

Treadmill Stress X 4 2 Facility $246.00 Tracing at hospital + interpretation

Cancer Screening

Fecal Occult Blood Testing X Optional 1 Lab $16.00

Sigmoidoscopy X Optional 5 Physician $475.00 Does not include Anesthesiologist cost

Colonoscopy $1,076.92 Does not include Anesthesiologist cost or any Pathology

PSA X 2 1 Lab $23.00

DRE X X X MD $18.00

Testicular Exam Self Exam Emph. Self Exam Emph. Self Exam Emph. MD $0.00 included in physical

PAP Smear 2 - 3 2 - 3 2 - 3 MD $25.00

Mammogram X 2 1 - 2 X-ray $90.00

Immunizations/Testing

PPD I.C. Policy I.C. Policy I.C. Policy Facility $14.00

Hep B I.C. Policy I.C. Policy I.C. Policy Facility $62.00

Td (Tetanus and diphtheria) 10 10 10 MD $23.00

Hep C I.C. Policy I.C. Policy I.C. Policy Facility $20.00

Varicella (chicken Pox) I.C. Policy I.C. Policy I.C. Policy Facility $95.00

Influenza 1 1 1 CYFD $19.00

TB 1 1 1 CYFD $123.00

MMR I.C. Policy I.C. Policy I.C. Policy Facility $56.00

Hep A I.C. Policy I.C. Policy I.C. Policy Facility $52.00

HIV I.C. Policy I.C. Policy I.C. Policy Facility $19.00

Polio I.C. Policy I.C. Policy I.C. Policy Facility $6.00

Counseling for Healthy Lifestyle 2 2 1 Handouts/MD $0.00

Bone Density X X 60 + for ↑ Risk $97.00

I.C. Policy - Infectious Control Policy.

Page 149 of 194



Yavapai Regional Medical Center 

02/2015 

 

ANNUAL 

 
 

OTHER (D&A) 

 

Procedure Price

Physical Exam 160.00$  

Visual Acuity -$        included in physical exam

Audiogram 34.00$    

Spirometry 32.00$    

CBC 8.00$      

CMP (metabolic profile) 13.00$    

Lipid profile (fasting) 16.00$    

Urinalysis 3.00$      

Heavy Metals screen,        24 hr 

urine collection,  (Lead, Mercury, 

Arsenic (Inorganic), Arsenic 

(Total), Creatinine) 

23.00$    

PSA 23.00$    

Hs-CRP 16.00$    

LDH Enzyme 7.00$      

CEA 23.00$    

Chest X-ray 59.00$    

EKG (12 lead) 16.00$    

DRE 18.00$    

Fecal Occult Blood Test 16.00$    

Pulmonary Stress Test Not available at this time

Cardio Pulmonary Stress Test 246.00$  

LDL Direct 12.00$    

Total 725.00$  

Procedure Price

Urine Drug Screen 13.00$   

Blood Alcohol 72.00$   

Page 150 of 194



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  December 12, 2016 
  
SUBJECT:  
 
We are asking for approval to purchase 10 sets of turnouts that are a sole-source item 
through LN Curtis. This item was identified several years ago as the brand the Agency 
would standardize on after comparing multiple companies products and prices. CAFMA 
has a line item budget amount of $72,600.00 that is usually broken up into two or three 
purchases over the fiscal year to cycle out turnouts as they approach the 10 year 
expiration date.  
 
Suggested Motion: Approve purchase of 10 sets of turnouts from LN Curtis in the 
amount of $26,476.15 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 

Page 151 of 194



P
a
g
e
 1

5
2
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 1

5
3
 o

f 
1
9
4



P
a
g
e
 1

5
4
 o

f 1
9
4



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  December 12, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE POLICY AMENDMENTS 203 DRUG POLICY, 401 WORK 

SCHEDULE, 402 COMPENSATION, 403 LEAVE BENEFITS 

 
The following policies have been reviewed and approved by the Policy Committee: 
 
203 Drug Policy – Language was added to clarify that drug testing is required after a 
vehicle accident. 
 
401 Work Schedule – Flex Time was added when the employee is requested to work 
outside their normal work schedule. 
 
402 Compensation – Corrected language to clarify the specific holidays that employees 
are paid double time for working overtime. Updated language related to Merit Increases, 
Longevity Pay, FLSA, and Paramedic student progress verification requirements. 
 
403 Leave Benefits – Moved and clarified language and related to Hardship Vacation 
and updated Sick Leave Usage and Compensatory Time sections. 
 
Suggested Motion:  Approve policy amendments for 401 Work Schedule, 203 Drug 
Policy, 402 Compensation, 403 Leave Benefits 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 

Page 155 of 194



203 DRUG POLICY 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/06/201012/07/2016 
 
 

Page 1 of 8 

I. PURPOSE 
 

The Agency believes that it is important to promote a drug-free community, to 
maintain safe, healthy, and efficient operations, and to protect the safety and 
security of the members, facilities, and property of the Agency. Drugs or alcohol 
may pose serious risks to the user and all those who work with the user. In 
addition, the use, possession, sale, transfer, manufacture, distribution, and 
dispensation of alcohol or illegal drugs in the workplace pose unacceptable risks 
to the maintenance of a safe and healthy workplace and to the security of 
Agency members, facilities, and property. Use of marijuana in any form is 
prohibited. Substance abuse, while at work or otherwise, seriously endangers the 
safety of members, as well as the general public, and creates a variety of 
workplace problems, including increased injuries on the job, increased 
absenteeism, increased health care and benefit costs, increased theft, decreased 
morale, decreased productivity, and a decline in the quality of products and 
services provided by the Agency. For all of those reasons, the Agency has 
established this Substance Abuse Policy. 
 
This policy is not intended to and does not constitute a contract of employment 
with the Agency. 
 
This policy supersedes and revokes all previous practices, procedures, policies, 
and other statements of the Agency, whether written or oral, that modify, 
supplement, or conflict with the policy. This policy may be amended at any time. 

 
II. SCOPE 

 
This policy applies to all Agency members including management, 
administration, temporary members, volunteers and all applicants who have 
received conditional offers of employment with the Agency. 
 
Depending upon their specific job duties, certain members may be subject to 
additional requirements under client requirements or state or federal regulations, 
including additional restrictions on drug or alcohol use, and additional provisions 
for drug and alcohol testing. 
 

III. POLICY 
 

Dissemination of Policy 
All applicants who have received conditional offers of employment with the 
Agency will be provided a copy of this policy to review before undergoing drug 
screening.  
 

Page 156 of 194



203 DRUG POLICY 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/06/201012/07/2016 
 
 

Page 2 of 8 

Definitions 
Illegal Drugs 
"Illegal drugs" means any controlled substance listed in schedules I through V of 
the Federal Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. §812), medication, or other 
chemical substance that (1) is not legally obtainable; or (2) is legally obtainable, 
but is not legally obtained, is not being used legally, or is not being used for the 
purpose(s) for which it was prescribed or intended by the manufacturer. Thus, 
"illegal drugs" may include even over-the-counter medications, if they are not 
being used for the purpose(s) for which they were intended by the manufacturer. 
 
Legal Drugs 
"Legal Drugs" means prescribed or over-the-counter drugs that are legally 
obtained by the member and used for the purpose(s) for which they were 
intended by the manufacturer. 
 
Agency Property 
"Agency property" and "Agency equipment, machinery, and vehicles" means all 
property, equipment, machinery, and vehicles owned, leased, rented, or used by 
the Agency. 
 
On Duty 
"On duty" means all working hours, as well as meal periods and break periods, 
regardless of whether on Agency property and all hours when a member 
represents the Agency in any capacity. 
 
Work Rules 
Substance Abuse by Members 
Alcohol 
Members may not use, possess, sell, or transfer alcohol while on duty, while 
working, while on Agency property, or while operating Agency equipment, 
machinery, or vehicles. 
 
Members may not work or report to work with detectable levels of alcohol in their 
systems. 
 
Members who violate either of these rules will be subject to discipline, up to and 
including immediate discharge. The Agency may make exceptions to these rules 
for certain business or social functions sponsored or approved by the Agency. 

 
Illegal Drugs 
Members may not possess illegal drugs or engage in the illegal use of drugs 
while on duty, while working, while on Agency property, or while operating 
Agency equipment, machinery, or vehicles. 

 

Page 157 of 194



203 DRUG POLICY 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/06/201012/07/2016 
 
 

Page 3 of 8 

Members may not work or report to work with detectable levels of illegal drugs or 
the metabolites of illegal drugs in their systems. 
 
Members may not manufacture, distribute, dispense, transfer, or sell illegal 
drugs. 
 
Members who violate any of these rules will be subject to discipline, up to and 
including immediate discharge. 

 
Legal Drugs / Medication 
Any member who has reason to believe that the legal use of drugs, such as a 
prescribed medication, may pose a safety risk to any person or interfere with the 
member’s performance of his or her job must report such legal drug use to his or 
her supervisor. The Agency shall then determine whether any work restriction or 
limitation is indicated. Failure to report the legal use of a drug that may pose a 
safety risk could result in disciplinary action. 

 
Criminal Drug Convictions 
Any member who is convicted of violating any criminal drug statute will be 
subject to discipline up to and including immediate discharge. 
 
Refer to Policy J620 Discipline - Disclosure of Information for direction on 
reporting law enforcement contact for any criminal activity, including illegal drug 
activity. 

 
Inspection of Property, Equipment, and Vehicles 
All persons on Agency property or who are performing services on an Agency 
project, and all property, equipment, and vehicles on Agency property or being 
used in connection with the performance of work on an Agency project (including 
without limitation all vehicles, containers, desks, and file cabinets), are subject to 
unannounced inspection by the Agency. You should not expect that any property 
or items that you bring to work with you or that you use at work are private. If you 
do not want any property or items inspected, do not bring them to work. Members 
who refuse to permit inspections under this Policy or who fail to cooperate with 
inspections under this Policy will be subject to discipline, up to and including 
immediate discharge. 
 
Drug and Alcohol Testing 
The Agency may require that members and applicants provide urine, blood, 
breath, and/or other samples for drug and alcohol testing under any of the 
following circumstances: 

 
Pre-Employment Testing  
All applicants who have received conditional offers of employment will be 

Page 158 of 194



203 DRUG POLICY 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/06/201012/07/2016 
 
 

Page 4 of 8 

required to undergo drug testing as a condition of employment. 
 

Reasonable Suspicion Testing 
The Agency may require any member to undergo drug and alcohol testing if 
management has a reasonable suspicion that the member: 

 
• Has violated the Agency's written work rules prohibiting the use, possession, 

sale, or transfer of alcohol and/or illegal drugs while on duty, while working, 
while on Agency property, or while operating Agency equipment, machinery, 
or vehicles; 

• Is under the influence of alcohol and/or illegal drugs while on duty, while 
working, while on Agency property, or while operating Agency equipment, 
machinery, or vehicles; 

• Is impaired by alcohol and/or illegal drugs; or 
• May be affected by the use of alcohol and/or illegal drugs and that the use 

may adversely affect job performance or the work environment. 
 
Post-Accident / Injury Testing 
The Agency requires any member to undergo drug and alcohol testing as soon 
as practical after a work-related accident or injury. Members being seen by a 
hospital or Agency physician as a result of an on-duty accident or injury will be 
drug tested within 24 hours. Additionally, any motor vehicle accident that results 
in damage that may warrant an insurance claim will require a drug and alcohol 
test of the vehicle operator within 24 hours of the incident.   

 
Treatment Program Testing 
Any member who has been referred by the Agency for chemical dependency 
treatment or evaluation or who is participating in a chemical dependency 
treatment program under a member benefit plan may be required to undergo 
drug and alcohol testing without prior notice during the evaluation or treatment 
period and for up to 2 years following the member's return to work. 

 
Additional Testing 
The Agency also may require members to undergo drug / alcohol testing when, 
in the judgment of management, such testing is appropriate for the safety of 
members, customers, or the public at large, or for the maintenance of 
productivity, quality, or security of property or information.  

 
Scheduling of Tests 
Drug or alcohol impairment testing shall normally occur during, or immediately 
before or after, a regular work period. Testing shall be deemed work time for the 
purposes of compensation and benefits for current members.  

 

Page 159 of 194



203 DRUG POLICY 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/06/201012/07/2016 
 
 

Page 5 of 8 

Specimen Collection and Testing Procedures 
Specimen Collection Procedures 
Test Subject Privacy 
Appropriate professional member will supervise the collection of urine and blood 
specimens for testing. In the absence of a reasonable suspicion that the test 
subject will alter or substitute a urine specimen, the collection member will not 
directly observe the collection of the urine specimen. 

 
Chain of Custody Procedures 
The Agency will take steps to preserve the chain of custody of specimens, in 
order to ensure testing accuracy. 

 
Specimen Testing Procedures 
Specimens will be tested only by laboratories that are properly approved to 
conduct drug and alcohol testing by U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services (SAMHSA, formerly NIDA), the College of American Pathologists, or the 
State of Arizona. 

 
The laboratory will test for the presence of marijuana, alcohol, illegal drugs, and 
their metabolites only. 

 
The Agency will rely only on positive initial screening test results that also have 
been confirmed by gas chromatography / mass spectrometry or other methods of 
confirmatory analysis provided for by the National Institute on Drug Abuse, the 
Department of Health and Human Services, or the College of American 
Pathologists ("confirmatory test"). 
 
Cost of Testing 
Individuals applying for a position with the Agency will be required to pay for all 
required drug and alcohol testing. The Agency will pay for any member drug and 
alcohol test that it requests or requires. The Agency will pay reasonable 
transportation costs to current members if their required tests are conducted at a 
location other than the member’s normal work site or in the alternative provide 
transportation for the member. 

 
Suspensions Pending Test Results 
Pending receipt of test results and written explanations and requests for retests 
of positive confirmatory test results, members may be temporarily suspended. If 
a member is suspended and the final confirmatory test result is negative, the 
member will be reinstated immediately with full back pay. 

 

Page 160 of 194



203 DRUG POLICY 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/06/201012/07/2016 
 
 

Page 6 of 8 

Test Result Reports 
The Agency will promptly communicate test results to test subjects. Any test 
subject may request a copy of his or her test result report. Member must submit 
request for results records in writing. 

 
Confidentiality of Test Results  
The Agency will not disclose test results except as authorized by the test subject 
or as authorized, permitted, or required by applicable law. 

 
Consequences of Refusal 
Members and applicants may refuse to undergo drug and alcohol testing. 
However, members who refuse to undergo testing or who fail to cooperate with 
the testing procedures will be subject to discipline, up to and including immediate 
discharge. Applicants who refuse to undergo testing or who fail to cooperate with 
the testing procedures will not be hired and will not be reconsidered for 
employment for 1 year. 
 
Right to Explain Test Results 
Any test subject who tests positive on a confirmatory test on any drug and 
alcohol test required by the Agency may:  

 
• Submit additional information to the Agency’s Human Resource Director, in a 

confidential setting, to try to explain the confirmed positive test result; and 
• Request in writing a confirmatory retest of the original sample, at his or her 

own expense, provided that the Agency Human Resource Director must 
receive the request within 5 working days after the test subject has been 
informed of the confirmed positive test result. 

 
Confirmatory retests requested and paid for by the test subject may be 
conducted only by laboratories that are properly approved to conduct drug and 
alcohol testing by the National Institute on Drug Abuse, the Department of Health 
and Human Services, or the College of American Pathologists. 

 
Consequences of Confirmed Positive Test Results 
Applicants 
Any applicant who tests positive on a confirmatory test on any drug and alcohol 
test required by the Agency and who does not timely and successfully refute the 
test results by explanation or retesting will not be hired and will not be 
reconsidered for employment for 1 year. 

 
Members 
First-Time Positive Test Result 
Any member who tests positive on a confirmatory test on any drug and alcohol 
test required by the Agency for the first time and who does not timely and 

Page 161 of 194



203 DRUG POLICY 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/06/201012/07/2016 
 
 

Page 7 of 8 

successfully refute the test results by explanation or retesting will be subject to 
discipline short of discharge. Such members also will be referred for a chemical 
dependency evaluation, and will be required to sign an appropriate "last-chance" 
agreement with the Agency governing substance abuse and testing. 

 
Any member, who fails to appear for a chemical dependency evaluation when 
directed by the Agency, fails to complete the terms of any prescribed treatment 
program, or fails in any way to cooperate with the chemical dependency referral 
and/or treatment process, will be subject to discipline, up to and including 
immediate discharge. 

 
Second-Time Positive Test Result 
Any member who tests positive on a confirmatory test on any drug and alcohol 
test required by the Agency for the second time and who does not timely and 
successfully refute the test results by explanation or retesting will be subject to 
discipline up to and including immediate discharge. 

 
Unemployment Compensation Benefits / Workers’ Compensation Benefits. 
Any member who refuses to cooperate with or who tests positive on a 
confirmatory test on any drug and alcohol test required by the Agency and who 
does not timely and successfully refute the test results by explanation or retesting 
and who is discharged will be subject to loss of unemployment insurance 
benefits. 

 
Any member who refuses to cooperate with or who tests positive on a 
confirmatory test on any drug and alcohol test required by the Agency after a 
workplace accident or injury and who does not timely and successfully refute the 
test results by explanation or retesting will be subject to loss of workers' 
compensation benefits. 
 
Employee Assistance Program / Substance Abuse Treatment  
The Agency regards its members as its most valuable asset. Accordingly, the 
Agency maintains an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) that provides help to 
members who suffer from substance abuse and/or other mental health problems. 

 
No member will be subject to discipline for voluntarily seeking EAP assistance or 
substance abuse treatment. A member may not, however, avoid discipline for 
violating the Substance Abuse Policy by seeking this assistance after the 
member is referred for testing pursuant to this policy. In addition, a member's 
participation in an EAP or referred substance abuse treatment program will not 
excuse the member from being required to meet all of the same standards and 
qualifications for the job that apply to other members, including performance, 
attendance, and other measures. 

 

Page 162 of 194



203 DRUG POLICY 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/06/201012/07/2016 
 
 

Page 8 of 8 

The Agency will conduct drug-free awareness programs periodically. These 
programs will inform members about the following: 
 
• The dangers of drug and alcohol abuse in the workplace; 
• The Agency's policy of maintaining a drug and alcohol-free workplace; 
• Available drug and alcohol counseling, rehabilitation, and member assistance 

programs; and 
• The sanctions that may be imposed for drug and alcohol abuse violations. 

 
Members are encouraged to approach their supervisor at any time with any 
questions they have about the Agency's Substance Abuse Policy.  

Page 163 of 194



401 WORK SCHEDULE 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  12/01/201012/07/2016 
 

 

Page 1 of 1 

I. PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this policy is to identify the work schedule for all members of the 
Agency. 

 
II. SCOPE 

 
This policy applies to all part-time and full-time Agency members. 

 
III. POLICY 
 

Operations members, including Battalion Chiefs, will work a 24-hour shift 
rotation. The schedule shall consist of a 3-day tour, working 24 hours on and 24 
hours off with 4 days off following each tour. 
 
Support Services Non-Operations offices are open as assigned by Fire Chief and 
members are assigned a 40-hour work week during this time frame as authorized 
by supervisor or as directed by the agency. 

 
Flex Time 
Non-Operations personnel may be requested to work outside their normal work 
schedule. The organization may request that the employee flex their schedule to 
accommodate the special assignment, while still maintaining their 40 hour work 
week, thus eliminating the need for overtime. This direction shall be from a 
supervisor, and will not prohibit the necessary use of required overtime for 
fulfilling the needs of the Agency.  
 
Non-Operations personnel may request to flex their work schedule within the 
same work day and only upon approval of their supervisor. Flex time must be 
recorded in the Agency staffing program (Telestaff).  
 
Flex time will not be a substitute for Education, Vacation, or Sick Leave.    

Page 164 of 194



402 COMPENSATION 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  12/01/201012/07/2016 
 

 

Page 1 of 5 

I. PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this policy is to identify a compensation schedule for wage 
increases, overtime, assignment pay, extra pay, holidays paid or holidays given 
off with pay, etc. for members of the Agency. 

 
II. SCOPE 

 
This policy applies to all part-time and full-time Agency members. 

 
III. POLICY 
 

Current annual wage scales are available from Administration. 
 
Merit Increases 
All members must attain a score total average score of 2.0 “progressing” 
(probationary) or 2.5 (non – probationary) "exceeds departmental standards" or 
higher to be eligible for a merit increase. Anyone receiving a rating of 1 in any 
category shall not be eligible for a merit increase for that rating period.   
 
Longevity Pay 
Agency members that have achieved Step 137 in their pay range and have at 
least a total average score of 2.5 (non – probationary) or higher “meets 
standards / above average” evaluations will receive a 1% yearly salary increase 
for longevity pay. Anyone receiving a rating of 1 in any category shall not be 
eligible for a merit increase for that rating period. Members will no longer be 
eligible for a longevity increase after 1213 longevity increases per pay range.  
 
Longevity pay will be added to member’s salary 1 year after they receive a Step 
7 merit raise, if the annual evaluation attains a score of “meets departmental 
standards” or higher. This increase will be added annually as long as they remain 
in the same pay range, meet the minimum evaluation guidelines, and have not 
received 13 longevity increases. 

 
Holiday Pay 
All full-time operations members, including Battalion Chiefs, receive $100 per 
holiday for the following 10 holidays: 
 

New Year’s Day Labor Day 
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day Columbus Day 
President’s Day Veteran’s Day 
Memorial Day Thanksgiving Day 
Independence Day Christmas Day 

 

Page 165 of 194



402 COMPENSATION 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  12/01/201012/07/2016 
 

 

Page 2 of 5 

All full-time non-shiftoperations members receive the following 7 holidays off with 
pay: 
 

New Year’s Day Veteran’s Day 
Memorial Day Thanksgiving Day 
Independence Day Christmas Day 
Labor Day 

 
All full-time non-shiftoperations members will also receive 3 floating holidays off 
with pay in place of the following holidays: Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, 
President’s Day, and Columbus Day. The accrual of and availability for use is at 
the beginning of each calendar year. Operations personnel assigned to an 
alternate work schedule (light duty) will be eligible for a  floating holiday(s) only if 
their alternate work schedule encompasses the date of any of the three 
designated floating holidays. They must take the earned floating holiday prior to 
returning to shift work, or forfeit the benefit.  

 
These fFloating holidays will be requested and approved following existing leave 
protocols. Minimum staffing requirements for each division will be determined by 
each division supervisor. Failure to use the designated floating holidays prior to 
the end of the calendar year will result in the forfeiture of the benefit. The closure 
of offices or facilities for non-shiftoperations personnel will be in observance of 
the annual Federal Holiday Schedule with mandatory (non-floating) holidays 
being observed on the closest work day to the calendar holiday.  
 
Operations qualified personnel and non-shift members will be compensated at 
double their normal hourly rate for any overtimeif required to  worked an 
unscheduled shift only  on an above listed holiday.New Years Day, 
Independence Day, Thanksgiving Day, or Christmas Day. All other non–exempt 
personnel shall be paid overtime (time and half) if required to work on a 
mandatory holiday and must be approved as noted under “Approval of Overtime”. 
 
Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)  
The Agency observes a 287-day work period and overtime is calculated using 
the regular overtime method of dividing an annual salary by 2,91220 hours. In 
addition, accrued paid time off, when used by members during the work period, 
will count towards the overtime calculations. FLSA law provides that where State 
and local government members, solely at their option, work occasionally or 
sporadically on a part-time basis for the same public agency in a different 
capacity from their regular employment, the hours worked in the different jobs 
shall not be combined for the purpose of determining overtime liability under the 
Act. Reference CFR §553.30. 
 
Approval of Overtime 

Page 166 of 194



402 COMPENSATION 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  12/01/201012/07/2016 
 

 

Page 3 of 5 

Any overtime, other than that which related to emergency responses and/or 
minimum staffing, shall have prior approval by the Assistant Chief or Fire Chief. 
 
Timeliness of Paperwork 
All required paperwork for Acting Pay or Overtime worked shall be submitted to 
the appropriate supervisor by the end of the tour in which the additional 
compensation was earned. 
 
All required paperwork or entries in the staffing program for Acting Pay or 
Overtime worked must be received by the Payroll Department by 10:00 a.m. on 
the Monday following the end of the pay period to be included in the 
compensation for that pay period. 
 
All pay change paperwork must be received by the Payroll Department by the 
Monday prior to the end of the pay period to go into effect for that pay period. If 
there was an error for the payroll period or an omission of pay due, a Payroll 
Correction Form must be completed by the employee (and appropriate 
supervisors) to be processed in the next pay period.  
 
When working on special projects which are outside normal job duties, there will 
be no compensation for off-duty time, i.e., sleep, rest, meal times (unless on-
call), and recuperation, etc. Members must sign the Special Duty Assignment 
Agreement to qualify for this compensation.  
 
Paramedic Assignment Pay 
Paramedics will receive assignment pay. This assignment pay will be added to 
their base salary. Agency sponsored members that are attending a paramedic 
training program will receive 50% paramedic assignment pay upon 1/3 
successful completion of paramedic training. Member will receive 100% 
paramedic assignment pay upon successfully completing 2/3 of paramedic 
training program. The Supervisor of the attending sponsored member will request 
verification of completing criteria from the Paramedic Program at each pay 
increase benchmark.  

 
Paramedic assignment pay is contingent upon member maintaining their 
certification.  

 
Copies of updated medical certification cards required by Arizona DHS and 
YRMC will be turned in to the office prior to expiration date on the card. Failure to 
have a current copy of medical certification cards on file will result in the loss of 
any associated assignment pay and may result in disciplinary action. Full time 
members will be removed from shift work and reserves will be removed from 
auxiliary staffing status until copies of medical certification cards can be obtained. 
 

Page 167 of 194



402 COMPENSATION 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  12/01/201012/07/2016 
 

 

Page 4 of 5 

HazMat Assignment Pay 
Hazardous Materials Technicians will be paid assignment pay. All technicians are 
expected to attend a minimum 66% of the scheduled monthly hazardous 
materials drills during the calendar year; this includes time on and off duty. On-
duty members should make an effort to attend the drill by making prior 
arrangements with the battalion chief or utilizing trades. If unable to attend, 
members should make up the drill or class that was missed. Members that do not 
meet the attendance requirements will meet with the team coordinators to 
evaluate performance and participation. There will be no further compensation 
for attending these drills. Overtime will be paid for responding off duty to 
hazardous material incidents. 

 
TRT Assignment Pay 
Technical Rescue Technicians will be paid assignment pay added to their regular 
hourly rate. In return, all technicians are expected to attend a minimum 66% of 
the scheduled monthly TRT drills during the calendar year; this includes time on 
and off duty. On-duty members should make an effort to attend the drill by 
making prior arrangements with the Battalion Chief. If unable to attend, members 
should make up the drill / class that was missed. Members that do not meet the 
attendance requirements will meet with the team coordinator to evaluate 
performance and participation. There will be no compensation above the 
previously stated hourly assignment pay for attending these drills. Overtime will 
be paid for responding off duty to TRT incidents. 
 
Peer Fitness Trainer Assignment Pay 

Peer Fitness Trainers will be paid an assignment pay added to their regular 
hourly rate. In return, all peer fitness trainers are expected to be responsible for 
knowing and applying a significant amount of information to safely and 
effectively train fellow firefighters and give them the results they need for a long 
and healthy career in the fire service. Each trainer is required to be a Peer 
Fitness Trainer certified through the American Council on Exercise (ACE) which 
is geared towards firefighter health and wellbeing. Additionally, they must 
maintain all CE requirements, recertify every 2 years through ACE, and have the 
certification on file with the Administrative Office to be eligible for the Assignment 
Pay. Special Duty pay will be used as compensation for members testing.  

 
Acting Pay  
Member is paid an additional $1.00 per hour for working in an acting position with 
a 1 hour minimum as approved by supervisor.  
 
Engineer / Supervisor Meetings – Pay  
It is mandatory for Engineers and Supervisors to attend the semi-annual 
meetings held for their ranks. Time spent at these meetings will be paid overtime. 
Acting Engineers and Acting Captains are encouraged, but are not required, to 

Page 168 of 194



402 COMPENSATION 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  12/01/201012/07/2016 
 

 

Page 5 of 5 

attend these meetings also as appropriate to their rank and will be paid overtime 
for attending. 

 
Special Duty Assignment Pay 
All members will be compensated at a rate of $25.00 per hour for all hours 
documented. There will be no compensation for off-duty time, i.e., sleep, rest, 
meal times, and recuperation, etc. per 29 CFR 553.212(a), and (b), and 553.30 – 
Non-exempt and Occasional or Sporadic Work. 
 
All members who participate in this program are members of the Agency while on 
the Special Duty Assignment, and are governed by Agency. Any violations will be 
handled accordingly. 

 
Compensation for Off-Duty Responses 
All members who are canceled anytime within 1 hour of the initial alarm will be 
compensated for 1 hour. After 1 hour, members will be compensated for actual 
time worked over the one-hour minimum. 
 
Members Working Overtime in a Suppression Position 
Agency members that are employed in a position at CAFMA CYFD that does not 
include fire suppression or other emergency response duties may work overtime 
hours, outside normal work hours, to response to fires and other emergency 
scenes if qualified and requested. 
 
Overtime hours in this situation will be paid at the overtime rate of the individual's 
full-time position. Members will remain in the retirement system appropriate to 
their regular full-time position. 
 
For example, a fire inspector may work on an engine in the capacity of a 
firefighter if they meet and maintain the established skill and physical 
requirements of a firefighter. 

Page 169 of 194



403 LEAVE BENEFITS 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/16/201612/07/2016 
 

 

Page 1 of 14 

I. PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this policy is to identify the leave accrual and use benefits for all 
members. 

 
II. SCOPE 

 
This policy applies to all part-time and full-time members. 

 
III. POLICY 

 
Vacation 

 
Accumulation of Vacation Time 
Vacation hours accrue on a monthly basis (at the end of the month) as follows: 
 
Years of Service 0-4 5-9 10-14 15-19 20+ 

 
24-Hour Shift Members 12.00 15.00 18.00 21.00 24.00 
 
Non-Shift Members 8.00 10.00 12.00 14.00 16.00  

 
24-hour shift members may accumulate no more than 720 hours of vacation at 
any time. Only 480 hours of vacation will be reimbursed upon termination of 
employment. 
 
Non-shift members may accumulate no more than 480 hours of vacation at any 
time. Only 320 hours of vacation will be reimbursed upon termination of 
employment. 
 
Part-time members shall accrue vacation time commensurate with the number of 
regularly assigned hours per week. 

 
Vacation Usage 
For nonexempt members, the minimum number of vacation hours that may be 
taken is 4 hours for 24-hour shift members and 1 hour for all other members. 
Non-exempt members shall record their vacation leave based on the actual 
hours off. 
 
Exempt members shall record their vacation leave based on days off. 
 
Three Operations members may be allowed off for vacation or education leave 
on any given shift, unless special approval has been granted by the Assistant 
Chief or Fire Chief. A fourth member may schedule educational leave to attend 

Page 170 of 194



403 LEAVE BENEFITS 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/16/201612/07/2016 
 

 

Page 2 of 14 

an EMT or paramedic recertification course. The maximum remains at three 
operations members to be allowed off for scheduled leave unless it pertains to 
medical recertification, or Administrative Leave that was budgeted for educational 
purposes. 
 
If leave is taken in excess of what has been earned, your account will reflect the 
negative balance and discipline applied as appropriate. 
 
If a member responds to a call or works a duty day while on vacation, the amount 
of vacation used will be reduced accordingly.  
 
Members may donate accumulated vacation hours to aid another member who is 
unable to work due to personal illness or crisis. The receiving member must have 
exhausted all of their accrued vacation and sick leave. 

 
Preferred Vacation 
Preferred vacation for the next fiscal year will be scheduled annually (April –
June) prior to July 1st using TeleStaff to auction vacation. 
 
The preferred vacation selection will be offered to each member of the shift in 
order of seniority from hire date. 
 

 Preferred vacation is not mandatory.  
 

 24-hour shift members are entitled to sign up for a preferred vacation period 
of not more than 6 shifts.  

 

 Each Person can take up to six consecutive 24 hour shifts.  
 

 Vacation must be within two tours. 
 

 Two tours need not be consecutive. (A three-shift tour in December and a 
three-shift tour in July.)  

 
Non-shift members may sign up for not more than 80 consecutive work hours.  
 
The period shall be for only those hours accrued at the beginning of the vacation 
period. 
 
After the Preferred Vacation picks are completed by all shift members the 
Preferred Vacation process will start over for the opportunity for personnel to pick 
three random nonconsecutive days. When the lowest seniority person is finished 
the vacation calendar will be opened up for first come vacation and education 
leave picks. 

Page 171 of 194



403 LEAVE BENEFITS 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/16/201612/07/2016 
 

 

Page 3 of 14 

 
Education leave requests will be held until the preferred vacation selection is 
completed. 

 
Regular Vacation 
Regular vacation is that vacation time available after the preferred vacations 
have been scheduled. 
 
Regular vacation is available on "a first-come, first-served" basis. Rank and 
seniority have no preferential treatment. 
 
Regular vacation may be taken in any increment not to exceed 160 hours for 
non-shift members or 240 hours for 24-hour shift members. 
 
Members desiring vacation may check TeleStaff or contact the chief officer to 
determine available days. 
 
Supervisors must approve vacations. 
 
Hardship Vacation 
Members taking hardship vacation must receive verbal approval from the on duty 
Battalion Chief. Operations personnel will be afforded up to 48 hours per year of 
hardship vacation only under certain circumstances. Hardship vacation shall be 
used for things such as home emergencies (i.e. flooding, wind or storm damage, 
and disabled vehicle), out of town and cannot get back to work on time due to 
situation beyond your control (i.e. airport shut down, snowed in, or disabled 
vehicle). Assistant Chief / Director or Fire Chief approval is required for additional 
days.  
 
 
Hardship vacation will be charged against accrued vacation time. Hardship 
vacation may be given regardless of how many people are off and may require 
over time. Hardship vacation will be granted for the minimum amount of time 
needed for the hardship. 
 
Hardship vacation will not be used as an additional vacation day, or in lieu of sick 
leave, family medical leave or emergency leave.  
 
Users of hardship vacation must notify and receive approval from the on-duty 
Battalion Chief or from their supervisor (if non-operations members). Hardship 
vacation should be requested a minimum of 1.5 hours in advance when possible 
 

Page 172 of 194



403 LEAVE BENEFITS 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/16/201612/07/2016 
 

 

Page 4 of 14 

Shift members may take a maximum of 48 hours. All other members may take a 
maximum of 32 hours per year hardship vacation leave. Assistant Chief / Director 
or Fire Chief approval is required for additional days.  
 
Seniority 
Seniority is “time on the job in fulltime status” and may be used only to select 
preferred vacation dates. The failure to select a preferred vacation period when 
preferred vacation is auctioned off by TeleStaff will be considered as waiving any 
rights of seniority to preferred vacation periods. 
 
When members have the same seniority dates, test scores and/or class standing 
will be used to determine seniority. 

 
Cancellation of Vacation 
In the event of an Agency emergency, the Fire Chief may cancel any or all 
vacations or portions thereof. Members who are affected will have priority in 
choosing replacement vacation days from the open vacation days. 
 
Vacation for Chief Officers and Non-Operations Members 
Members not assigned to operations will have their vacations approved by their 
supervisors in a manner that will not impair the efficiency of their division. 
 
Vacation Buyback 
When a member terminates employment, they will be paid accrued vacation up 
to 320 hours for non-shift members and 480 hours for 24-hour shift members. 
Vacation time will be paid at the member's current hourly rate. 

 
Return from Off District 
Upon return from an off-District assignment, if the remainder of the shift is 
requested off, it will be considered vacation and not subject to the vacation 
requirement contained in this manual. 

 
Sick Leave 
 
Accumulation of Sick Leave 
Sick leave is accumulated in the same manner as vacation leave. 
 
There is no maximum accrual. 
 
No sick leave will be accrued by part-time members. 

 
Reduced Hours from Fulltime to Part-time 
If a full-time member transfers to part-time for any reason, including voluntary 
transfer by reason of Agency reorganization or disciplinary reasons, sick leave 

Page 173 of 194



403 LEAVE BENEFITS 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/16/201612/07/2016 
 

 

Page 5 of 14 

accrual for that member shall cease, and the sick leave accrued while that 
member worked for the Agency as a full-time member shall remain credited to 
that member’s account. Should the part-time member terminate their 
employment for any reason, the sick leave accrued as a full-time member shall 
be forfeited, unless vested pursuant to Agency policy relating to buy back. If 
however, that part-time member should, at a later date, again become a full-time 
member, then said accrued sick leave shall once again be made available to that 
full-time member, and the accrual of sick leave for that full-time member shall 
continue. No credit for purposes of sick leave accrual or buy back shall be given 
to a member working on a part-time basis. The time for sick leave accrual and 
vesting shall be tolled while a member works for the Agency part-time. 
 
Part-time Members and Sick Leave  
Part-time members with accrued sick leave on the books at time of reduction in 
hours may use sick leave. Part-time members will not accrue sick leave. 

 
Sick Leave Usage 
Sick leave shall be used to recuperate from an injury or illness that prohibits the 
performance of duties and to minimize the spread of infectious disease, or for the 
care of a sick/injured immediate family memeber. or for Non-operations 
personnel, those assigned to a 40 hour work week, may use sick leave  
medicalfor medical appointments.  

 
Nonexempt members shall record their sick leave based on the actual hours off. 
 
Exempt members shall record their sick leave based on the days off. 
 
Operations members using more than 4 consecutive 24-hour shifts or 8 
consecutive work days will be required to use family and medical leave. 
 
Operations members unable to report to work at the start of a shift because of 
illness or injury shall update TeleStaff not less than 1.5 hours before shift 
change. Operations members are not eligible for overtime 24 hours after calling 
in sick. (example:  Call in sick on Monday, not eligible to work overtime until 
Wednesday). 
 
All other members shall notify their immediate supervisor or place of employment 
at least 30 minutes before the start of their scheduled work period. 
 
Non-operations members, off for more than 40 consecutive hours, and shift 
members, off for more than 72 consecutive hours, will be required to turn in a 
release from their doctor verifying the nature of their illness. Verification of 
sickness may be required by the Fire Chief in certain instances when members 
are on sick leave less than the above number of days or shifts. 

Page 174 of 194



403 LEAVE BENEFITS 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/16/201612/07/2016 
 

 

Page 6 of 14 

 
The physician's release must be approved by the Fire ChiefHuman  
beforeResources before fire members may resume fire-related duties.  
 
Personnel that utilize more sick time than they have available will not be paid for 
hours taken in excess of their bank, and may receive disciplinary action.   

 
Member’s Inability to Work Due to Illness / Health 
When a question arises about an Agency member's ability to perform his job 
without hazard to his health, the chief officer may consult with the Agency's 
physician, who shall establish a period of physical disability, if appropriate. (The 
Agency's physician may consult with the member's physician, if they have one.) 
 
At the Fire Chief'sAgency’s discretion, a member may be assigned to light-duty 
status if such work is available. 

 
Leave Donation 
Members may donate accumulated vacation hours to aid another member who is 
unable to work due to personal illness or crisis. The receiving member must have 
exhausted all of their accrued vacation and sick leave. 
 
Special Leave Without Pay 
There will be no accrual of vacation and sick leave during unpaid leave. 
 
Leave of Absence (LOA)  
Leave of absence may be granted by the Fire Chief to any member for a 
minimum of 1 month, not to exceed 1 year. Leave of absence will not be 
considered as Agency-credited service. 

 
Medical Leave of Absence 
Medical leave of absence may be granted by the Fire Chief to any member for 
medical or physical recuperation, on a case-by-case basis. 

 
Members shall be responsible for their medical insurance payments (to be paid 
to the Agency) during leave without pay. 

 
Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) and Public Safety Retirement System 
(PSPRS) will accept authorized leave without pay as "service," but not as 
"credited service” toward normal retirement. 

 
The date of merit eligibility will be adjusted to delay the date in accordance with 
the amount of time not worked. 

 
Extended Leave 

Page 175 of 194



403 LEAVE BENEFITS 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/16/201612/07/2016 
 

 

Page 7 of 14 

Extended leave is defined as any leave of more than 30 days. If on an extended 
leave both probationary and regular evaluation dates, seniority standing, and 
leave accrual will be adjusted accordingly.  

 
Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) and PSPRS will accept authorized 
leave without pay as “service”, but not as “credited service” toward normal 
retirement.  

 
The date of merit eligibility will be adjusted to delay the date in accordance with 
the amount of time not worked.  

 
Openings created by an extended leave may be temporarily backfilled. The 
decision to utilize temporary backfilling will be made by the Assistant Chief or 
Fire Chief. 

 
Sick Leave Buyback 
OPTION A - SICK LEAVE BUY-BACK:  Members who retire or voluntarily 
separate employment with a minimum of 10 years of continuous employment will 
be compensated for 50% of sick leave accrued in excess of 712 hours for non-
shift members and 1,068 hours for 24-hour shift members at the member’s hourly 
rate at the time of separation. Members dismissed are not eligible except as 
authorized by Fire Chief on a case-by-case basis. 

 
OPTION B - NON-HOURLY COMPENSATION:  Members who have attained a 
minimum of 17 years of service and a minimum of 1,200 hours sick leave for 
non-shift members and 1,800 hours sick leave for 24-hour shift members may 
elect to have 50% of future accrued sick leave hours converted to non-hourly 
compensation and paid at their hourly pay rate on a per pay period basis until 
their retirement. If the member plans on staying longer than 20 years, the non-
hourly compensation may begin any time after the 17th year of service, at the 
member’s request. 

 
The following requirements and restrictions apply: 

 

 Member must notify Administration in January before the beginning of the 
fiscal year in which this Option will be utilized. 

 

 Non-shift members must have a minimum of 1,200 hours of accrued sick 
leave and 24-hour shift members must have a minimum of 1,800 hours of 
accrued sick leave before invoking Option B. 

 

 Any time a non-shift member's sick leave drops below 880 hours or a 24-hour 
shift member's sick leave drops below 1,320 hours Option B stops and they 
automatically revert to Option A for the duration of their employment. 

Page 176 of 194



403 LEAVE BENEFITS 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/16/201612/07/2016 
 

 

Page 8 of 14 

 

 At the time of retirement, 50% of any excess sick leave over 712 hours for 
non-shift members and 1,068 for 24-hour shift members will be compensated 
in a lump sum at the member’s base hourly rate at the time of separation 
(See Insurance and Related Benefits / Post Employment Health Plan (PEHP. 

 

 Once the member elects Option B, it must continue until their retirement, 
unless the member's sick leave drops below 880 hours for non-shift members 
and 1,320 hours for 24-hour shift members. 

 

 This option can be exercised only once during the member’s career.  
 

Emergency Leave 
Members may be granted "Emergency Leave" for critical situations such as a 
death or serious illness or injury in the member's family. 
 
"Family" is to include children, brother, sister, mother, father, grandfather, 
grandmother, spouse, and all corresponding relatives of the spouse. 
 
Emergency leave will not be charged against accrued vacation time. 
 
Emergency leave shall be granted for the minimum amount of time needed for 
the emergency. A Chief level officer may grant the remainder of the shift for 
emergency leave. The Assistant Chief / Director or Fire Chief may grant 
additional emergency leave limited to 48 hours for 24-hour shifts members or 40 
hours for non-shift members. 
 
An accommodation to allow use of vacation leave may be afforded to members 
requesting emergency leave pertaining to the death of someone extending 
outside the policy’s definition of family. The amount of leave time allowed will be 
the same as outlined for definition of family.  
 
Members requiring additional time off for a serious illness or injury in the 
member's family must request family and medical leave if qualified. 
 
A Chief Officer must approve all emergency leave.  
 

Pregnancy Leave 
This policy establishes guidelines relating to the safety of members of the 
Agency who become pregnant, their fellow members, and the public. 
 
The Agency recognizes pregnancy as a normal occurrence in a woman’s life and 
therefore establishes this policy to implement the provision of temporary 8-hour 

Page 177 of 194



403 LEAVE BENEFITS 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/16/201612/07/2016 
 

 

Page 9 of 14 

alternate non-hazardous duty assignments for a pregnant female member until 
the member takes Family and Medical Leave.  
 

 Responsibility 
When a member is diagnosed by a physician as pregnant, she will 
immediately notify her supervisor. 

 

 Assignments 
Members assigned to a operations position shall request a letter from their 
attending physician addressing the member's ability to continue in her present 
assignment. Human Resources will provide the member with a packet of 
information for her attending physician that includes a description of job 
duties, responsibilities, and conditions. 

 
The member is responsible, with advice from her physician, to determine how 
long she will continue in her assigned position. 
 
Temporary reassignments to 8-hour alternate non-hazardous duty within a 
classification may be granted after written request to the Fire Chief by the 
member. 
 
Operations members assigned to an 8-hour position will remain at the same 
salary range and step, but will not receive their automatic FLSA overtime. 
 
All alternate non-hazardous assignments shall be based upon Agency needs 
and physical limitations determined by the member's attending physician. 

 

 Uniform 
While assigned to a operations position, pregnant members will be required to 
wear the specified uniform and all safety equipment. 
 
While assigned to alternate non-hazardous duty or a non-operations position, 
civilian or maternity clothing may be worn by pregnant members. 

 

 Training 
While on alternate non-hazardous duty, the member will participate in 
Agency-level training that other fire members are undergoing, as long as the 
class activities do not pose any risk to the member. 
 
Discrimination on the basis of pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical 
conditions constitutes unlawful sex discrimination and will not be tolerated. 

 
Subpoenaed Leave 

Page 178 of 194



403 LEAVE BENEFITS 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/16/201612/07/2016 
 

 

Page 10 of 14 

If a member is subpoenaed for court appearance in connection with Agency 
business, the Agency will pay the member's wages during the period involved 
and the member will return all subpoena fees to the Agency except for travel 
expenses. If the subpoena does not involve the Agency, the member will be 
responsible for arranging coverage in his absence. 
 
Jury Duty Leave 
It is the responsibility of each member to notify his immediate supervisor upon 
receipt of a jury summons and the dates of service. 

 
Members serving on jury duty during their scheduled working hours will 
receive full pay and benefits. 
 
Members serving on jury duty will return all the jury fees to the Agency except 
for their travel expenses. 

 
Military Leave 
All members required to attend military training shall be entitled to a military 
leave from their respective duties. 
 
Military leave will be granted for one weekend a month and for two weeks a 
year without loss of benefits, time, evaluation rating, vacation accrual, sick 
leave, or salary. 

 
Additional military training time will be granted without pay and benefits. 
 
Members involved shall submit a copy of their military orders directing them to 
report for duty to their immediate supervisor as soon as possible for approval 
of military leave. 

 
Any member called into active service, or who volunteers for active service, 
shall be entitled to appropriate re-employment rights under State and Federal 
law. 

 
Education Leave 
Operations Members - Education Leave may be requested through TeleStaff 
if available or through the training requests form. Education Leave requests 
through the training request form may be granted if the budget can cover 
overtime costs. The Operations Chief will grant approval if funds are 
available. Educational leave being taken on the roster counts towards the 
maximum amount of scheduled time off per shift (3 positions). For example, if 
three members are on vacation, educational leave is no longer available that 
day. If only two members are on vacation, then a third person may request 
education leave on a first come first served basis. 

Page 179 of 194



403 LEAVE BENEFITS 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/16/201612/07/2016 
 

 

Page 11 of 14 

 
Administrative Leave 
The purpose of administrative leave is to provide a leave option to cover 
situations that other leave does not otherwise address. 
 
Administrative leave may only be granted by the Fire Chief or Assistant 
Chiefs. 

 
It is preferred that regular leave be used if available and appropriate. 
Administrative leave use generally falls into 3 categories: 

 

 Coverage of activities that are in support of Agency programs. 
Examples include:  Peer fitness testing, Agency instructors teaching to 
Agency or area members, promotional testing.. 

 

 Educational opportunities that exceed established or reasonable use of 
education leave. 
Examples include:  National Fire Academy, paramedic program, wildland 
academy attendance in excess of normal education leave. 
 

 Administrative needs. 
Examples include:  Coverage of previously scheduled vacation when 
members are moved to another shift or during an internal or external 
investigation. 

 
Effort shall be made to budget for foreseeable use of Administrative Leave for 
support of Agency programs and educational opportunities.  

 
Shift Trade and Standby 
 
Shift trades must be entered in TeleStaff for the trade to be valid. 

 
A member's immediate supervisor may grant a trade or standby with a 
replacement qualified or having the ability to fulfill the position in 
addition to being of like rank or one rank difference, with no payback 
date required at the time of the trade. The Battalion Chief shall be 
notified at the time of the request. The number of trades and standbys a 
member may use is unlimited. Members should trade with members of 
like medical certifications and qualifications. Shift trades are approved 
at the discretion of the Battalion Chief. 
 
Members are not allowed to pay another member to work their scheduled 
shift. 
 

Page 180 of 194



403 LEAVE BENEFITS 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/16/201612/07/2016 
 

 

Page 12 of 14 

Shift trades may not be allowed if the trade causes the Agency to pay 
overtime for appropriate shift coverage. 
 
Members assigned to alternate Agency duty during a shift trade day will be 
considered to be on duty and paid accordingly.  
 
It will be the responsibility of the members trading to obtain confirmation that 
the trade has been entered in TeleStaff.  
 
Agency members may trade with members of Prescott Fire Department. If 
trading with an agency that has different SCBAs, you must be current on their 
mask fit processes. 
 
Members will be held accountable for policies of both agencies.  

 
Trade positions are not eligible for Acting Pay unless the person filling 
the trade is required by the Agency to fill an Acting position due to 
staffing needs. 

 
The Agency assumes no responsibility for time that may not be paid back, 
e.g., should a person quit, be terminated, or transferred to another shift. 
 
Overtime / Compensatory Time 

 
This policy applies to all non-24-hour shift members. 
 
The purpose of this policy is to outline how overtime and compensatory time 
off is to be accrued and used by members of the Agency. Compensatory time 
off is a component of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act and is available to 
public employers as a means of compensating members for overtime. 

 
Overtime 
In order to support the objectives of the Agency, a member may be expected 
to work extra hours beyond the normal workweek or the member's normal 
schedule, if required to do so by the member's department head. A 
department head also has the authority to require members to report to work 
in emergency callback situations and to be available for an on-call basis for 
normal Agency operations. 
 
Nonexempt members shall not work overtime unless specifically approved to 
do so by their supervisor.  
 
Understanding Overtime 

Page 181 of 194



403 LEAVE BENEFITS 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/16/201612/07/2016 
 

 

Page 13 of 14 

Nonexempt members must be compensated for every hour worked. Over 40 
compensable hours in a work week, must be compensated at one and one 
half times their normal rate of pay, or accrued as compensatory time off at 
time and one-half.  
 
NOTE: Part-time member compensatory time shall be accrued or overtime 
paid at straight time when the part-time member's paid time exceeds the 
established scheduled hours and hours worked are less than 40 hours in a 
work week.  
 
For example, a part-time member who works 20 hours in a work week, in a 
peak business time, is required to work 30 hours. The member is paid for 20 
regular hours and may be given either 10 hours of straight compensatory time 
or 10 hours of additional paid straight time. 
 
When a nonexempt member works multiple nonexempt positions the number 
of hours worked in each position is cumulative in determining eligibility for 
overtime. 
 
Special Duty Assignments 
Members working Special Duty Assignments as defined in the Agency 
Compensation Policy are not eligible for overtime or compensatory time. 
 
Full-Time, Nonexempt Members 
Full-time, nonexempt members shall be compensated for overtime work in 
one of two ways: 
 
1. Time and one-half payment of the member's regular rate of pay for each 

hour worked over 40 in a work week.  
 

2. One and one-half hours of compensatory time off for each hour worked 
over 40 in a work week.  

 
Part-Time, Nonexempt Members 
Part-time, nonexempt members shall be compensated for hours worked in 
excess of their established scheduled hours and up to 40 hours in a work 
week in one of two ways: 
 
1. Straight time payment of the member's regular rate of pay for each hour 

worked up to 40 in a work week.  
 

2. Straight time compensatory time off for each hour worked up to 40 in a 
work week.  

 

Page 182 of 194



403 LEAVE BENEFITS 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 / 12/20/2016 
Reviewed:  04/16/201612/07/2016 
 

 

Page 14 of 14 

Eligible part-time members shall be compensated for hours worked in excess 
of 40 in a work week in one of two ways. 
 
1. Time and one-half payment of the member's regular rate of pay for each 

hour worked over 40 in a work week, or  
 

2. One and one-half hours of compensatory time off for each hour worked 
over 40 in a work week.  

 
Compensatory Time  
 
Maximum Hours of Compensatory Time 
Unless authorized by the Fire Chief, members should not exceed a maximum 
of 90 hours of accumulated compensatory time. After a member has accrued 
90 hours of compensatory time, all subsequent overtime hours worked shall 
be compensated via payroll. 
 
Accurate record keeping of overtime hours worked and compensatory time 
credited on the bi-weekly time sheet or through a staffing program is 
mandatory.  
 
Using Compensatory Time 
When using compensatory time, members must fill out a leave slip form or 
enter the request through a staffing program and obtain prior approval from 
their supervisor. This should also be recorded on the member time sheet. 
 
Compensatory Time at Termination 
Any compensatory time balance should be paid at the member's most recent 
nonexempt rate of pay to the member upon written request, termination, 
retirement, or change of status from nonexempt to exempt by the next 
regularly scheduled pay period or as mandated by law. 
 
All accrued compensatory time not used prior to the last pay period of 
the fiscal year shall be paid to the member so as to eliminate the short-
term fiscal liability to the Agency. 
 
Questions pertaining to overtime and compensatory time should be forwarded 
to Human Resources. 

Page 183 of 194



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  December 12, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION REGARDING PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS 

 
There have been no requests for public records since the last Fire Board meeting. Staff 
would like the Board to specify what information they would like complied on a monthly 
basis. 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 

Page 184 of 194


	Agenda
	Appointment of Chair and Clerk Coversheet.pdf
	2016 11 15 CAFMA Minutes - Draft.pdf
	2016 11 15 CAFMA Minutes - Executive Draft.pdf
	General Fund.pdf
	Hanby Fire Protection Agreement 11-15-2016.pdf
	3.5 Board Officer Duties CAFMA redlined.pdf
	3.5 Board Officer Duties CAFMA clean.pdf
	Thank You Card 1.pdf
	Thank You FF.pdf
	Thank You FF 2.pdf
	Thank You FF 1.pdf
	2016 12 20 Division Report.pdf
	YRMC Client Services Agreement- NJC FINAL 11.16.2016.pdf
	Turnouts Coversheet.pdf
	LN Curtis Sales Order.pdf
	Policy Amendments Coversheet.pdf
	203 Drug Policy redlined 12-20-2016.pdf
	401 Work Schedule 12-20-2016.pdf
	402 Compensation redlined 12-20-2016.pdf
	403 Leave Benefits - redlined 12-20-16.pdf
	Public Records coversheet.pdf
	Real Estate Purchase Contract 238 N HWY 89 - Station 64.pdf



